INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

TO THE MEMBLRS OF DHURSAR SOLAR POWER PRIVATE LIMITED

Report on the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying finaneial statements of Dhursar Selar Power Private Limited
(the Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2017 the Statement of Profit
and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the Cash Flow Statement and the Statement
of Changes in Lquity for the vear then ended, and a summany of the significant accounting
policies and other explanatory information.

Management's Responsibility for the Ind AS Financial Statements

¥

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act™) with respect to the preparation of these Ind AS financial
statements to give a true and fair view of the State of affairs (financial position), profit (financial
performance ineluding other comprehensive income), cash flows and changes in equity of the
Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the
Indian Accounting Standards specified in the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules,
2015 (as amended) under Section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also includes maintenance of
adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the
assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection
and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are
reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal
finaneial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the aceuracy and completeness of
the accounting records, relevant to the prepacation and presentation of the [nd AS financial
statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

Auditors’ Responsibility

3.

(_J‘!

Qur responsibility is ta express wn opinion on these Ind AS financil statements based on our
auclit.

We have taken into account the provisions of the Acl and the Rules made thereunder including
the accounting and auditing standards and matters which are required to be included in the audit
report under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder.

We conducted our audit of the Ind AS financial statements in accordance with the Standards on
Auditing specified under Section 143(1¢) of the Act and other applicable authoritative
pronouncements issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standarvds and
pronouncements require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the
audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Ind AS financial stalements are free irom
material misstatement.

An aundit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the ameounts and the
disclosures in the Ind AS financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the anditors’
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the Ind AS financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. [n making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal financial control relevant to the Company’s preparation of the Ind AS financial
statements that give a true and fair view, in order to design audit procedures that ave appropriate
in the circumstances. An audit also includes evalvating the appropriateness of the accounting
policies used and the reasonableness of the accounting estimates made by the Company's
Directors. as well as evaluating the averall presentation of the Ind AS financial statements.
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We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion on the Ind AS tinancial statements.

Opinion

8.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us,
the aforesaid Ind AS financial statements give the information required by the Act in the manner
50 required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally
accepted in India, of the state of affairs (financial position) of the Company as at March 31, 2017,
and its profit (financial performance including other comprehensive income), its cash fiows and
the changes in equity for the year ended on that date.

Other Matter

9.

The financial information of the Company for the year ended March 31, 2016 and the transition
date opening balance sheet as at April 1, 2015 included in these Ind AS financial statements, are
based on the previously issued statutory financial statements for the vears ended March 31, 2016
and March 31, 2015 prepared in accordance with the Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules,
2006 (as amended) which were audited by us, on which we expressed an unmoditied opinion
dated May 25, 2016 and May 26, 2015 respectively. The adjustments to those financial statements
for the differences in accounting principles adopted by the Company on transition to the Ind AS
have been audited by us.

Our opinion is not modified in respeet of these matters,

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

10. Asrequired by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2016, issued by the Central Government

1L

of India in terms of sub-section (11} of section 143 of the Act (“the Order™), and on the basis of
such checks of the books and records of the Company as we considered appropriate and according
to the information and explanations given to us, we give in Lhe Annexure B a statement on the
matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

Further to our comment in the annexure B, as required Iy Section 143 (3) of the Act, we report
that:

{a} We have sought and obtained all the infermation and explanations which to the best of owur
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit,

{b) In our epinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so
far as it appears from owr examination of those books.

(¢) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including other comprehensive income),
the Cash Flow Statement and the Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with by this Report
are in agreement with the books of account.

{d} In our opinion, the aforesaid Ind AS financial statements comply with the Indian Accounting
Standavds specified under Section 133 of the Act.

{e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2017
taken on record by the Board of Divectors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March
31, 2017 from being appoinied as a divector in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act,
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{f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the
Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in
Annexure A.

(g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditors’ Report in accordance with
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of
our knawledge and belief and according to the inforination and explanations given to us:

i.  The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations as at ¥March 31, 2017 on its
financial position in its financial statement — Refer note 5.

il.  The Company has long-term contracts including derivative contracts as at March 31,
2017 for which there were no material foreseeable losses.

1. There were no amounts which were requived to be transferred to the Investor Education
and Protection Fund by the Company during the year ended March 31. 2017

iv.  The Company did nei have any holdings or dealings in Specified Bank Notes during the
period frem 8th November, 2010 to 30th December, 2016 — Refer Note 20.

For Price Waterhotse For Chaturvedi & Shah
Firm Registration Number: 3011125 Firm Registration Number: 101720W
Chartered Accountants Chartered Accountants
/ Priyprfshu Gundana Vijav Napawaliya
Partner Partner
\Iembe:‘s]lip Number: 109553 Membership Number: 109859
Place: Mumbai Place: Mumbai

Date; April 12, 2017 Date: Apyil 12, 2017
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2017.
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Report on the luternal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-scction 3 of Section 143
ofthe Acl

1. We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Dhursar Solar Power Private
Limited (“the Company”}) as of March 31, 2017 in conjunction with our audit of the finaneial statements
of the Company for the vear ended on that date,

Management’s Respousibility for Internal Financial Controls

2. The Company's management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls
based on the intemal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering
the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAT).
These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal
financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efticient eonduct of its
business, including adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and
detection of frauds and errors, the aceuracy and completeness of the aceounting records, and the
timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Act.

Auditors’ Responsibility

3. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s internal financial eontrols over financial
reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit
of [nternal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note") and the Standards on
Auditing deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Act to the extent applicable to an audit
of internal finaneial controls, both applicable to an audit of internal financial controls and both issued
by the ICAL Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements
and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal
financial controls over financial veporting was established and maintained and if such controls
operated effectively in all material respects.

4. Our audit involves pertorming procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial conlrols svstem over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness, Owr audit of
internal finaneial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internai
financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and
testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based an the assessed
risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgement, including the assessment of the risks
of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraoud or error.

5. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion on the Company's internal financial controls systemn over financial reporting,.
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Meaning of Internal Financial Contrels Over Financial Reporting

6.

A company’s internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A
company's internal tinancial contrel over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures
that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect
the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that
transactions are vecorded as necessary 10 permit preparation of financial statements in accordance
with generally accepted accounting prineiples, and that receipts and expenditures of the company
arebeing made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company:
and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised
acquisition, use. or disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material etfect on the
financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

7. Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the
possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to
error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the interanal
finaneial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal
finaneial control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or
that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

8. In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls
system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting weve
aperating effectively as at March 31, 2017, based on the internal control over tinancial reporting
criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in
the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

[For Price Waterhouse For Chaturvedi & Shah

Firm Registration Number: 3011125 Firm Registration Number; 101720W

Chartered Accountants Charteved Accountants

Privap€hu (§undcma Vijay Napawaliva

Parther Partner

)\‘Iembership Number: 109553 Membership Number: 106859

Place: Mumbai Place: Mumbai

Date: April 12, 2017 Date: April 12, 2017
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Referred to in paragraph 10 of the Independent Auditors’ Report of even date to the members of Dhursar
Solar Power Private Limited on the Ind AS financial statements for the vear ended March 31, 2017.

. (a} The Company is maintaining proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative
details and situation, of fixed assets.

(b} The fixed assets of the Company have been physically verified by the Management during the vear
and no material diserepancies have been noticed on such verification, In our opinien, the
frequency of verification is reasonable,

(c) The title deeds of immovable properties, as disclosed in fixed assets note 4.1 to the linancial
statements, are held in the name of the Company.

ii. The Company does not have any inventory. Therefore, the provisions of Clause 3(ii) of the snid
Order are not applicable to the Company.

iil. The Company has not granted any loans, secured or unsecured, to companies, firms, Limited
Liability Partierships or other parties covered in the register maintained under Section 189 of the
Act. Therefore, the provisions of Clause 3(iii), (iii)(a), ({i}b) and (iii)(c) of the said Order are not
applicable to the Company.

v, The Company has not granted any loans or made any investments, or provided any guarantees or
security to the parties covered under Section 185 and 186. Therefore, the provisions of Clause
3(iv} of the said Order are not applicable to the Company.

V. The Company has not aceepted any deposits {rom the public within the meaning of Sectons 73,
74, 75 and 76 of the Act and the Rules framed there under to the extent notified. During the year
under audit, ao order has been passed by the Company law board or National Company law
tribunal or Reserve Bank of India or any court or any other tribunal.

Vi, Pursuant to the rules made by the Central Government of India, the Company is required to
maintain cost records as specified under Section 148(1) of the Act in respect of its products.
We have broadly reviewed the same, and are of the opinion that, prima facie, the preseribed
accounts and records have been made and maintained. We have not, however, macdle a detailed
examination of the records with a view to determine whether they are aceurate or comiplete.

vii. (a) According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the Company
examined by us, in our opinion, the Company is regular in depositing undisputed statutory duesin
vespect of professional tax, though there has been a slight delay in a few cases, and is regular in
depositing undisputed statutory dues, including provident fund, employees’ state insurance, sales
tax, income tax, service tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, value added tax, cess and other
material statutory dues, as applicable, with the appropriate authorities. There are no undisputed
amounts pavable in respect of such applicable statutory dues as at March 31, 2017 for a period of
more than six months from the date they become payable,

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the Company
examined by us, there are no dues of income-tax, sales-tax, service-tax, duty of customs, and duty
of excise or value added tax which have not been deposited on account of any dispute.

Vidi. According to the records of the Company examined by us and the information and explanation
given to us, the Company has net defaulted in repayment of loans or borrowings to any financtal
institution or bank or Governiment as at the balance sheet date,

iX. In our epinion, and aceording to the information and explanations given to us, the company has
not raised any moneys by way of initial public offer or further public offer (including debt
instruments) and term loans have been applied for the purpose for which they were obtained,
except for the nnutilized proceeds of term loans, to the extent of Rs 750 lacs that were obtained
for capital expenditure but held in fixed deposit account with bank at the year end.
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X. During the course of our examination of the books and records of the Company, carried outin
accordance with the generally accepted auditing practices in India, and according to the
information and explanations given to us, we have neither come across any instance of material
fraud by the Company or on the Company by its officers or emplovees, noticed or reported during
the year, nor have we been informed of any such case by the Manazement.

XL The Company has not paid/provided for managerial remuneration. Therefore, the provisions of
Clause 3(xi) of the Qrder are not applicable to the Company.

xil. As the Company is not & Nidhi Company and the Nidhi Rules, 2014 are not applicable to it, the
provisions of Clause 3(xii) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

xiif. The Company has entered into transactions with related parties in compliance with the provisions
of Sections 177 and 188 of the Act. The details of such related party transactions have been
disclosed in the financial statements as required under Indian Aceounting Standard (AS) 24,
Related Party Disclosures specified in the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015
{as amended) under Section 133 of the Act.

xiv.  The Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or fully or
partly convertible debentures during the year under review. Accordingly. the provisions of Clause
3(xiv) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

X The Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors or persons
connected with him. Accordingly, the provisions of Clause 3(xv) of the Order are not applicable to
the Company.

Xvi. The Company is not required to he registered under Section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India
Act, 1934. Accordingly, the provisions of Clause 3{xvi) of the Ovder are not applicable to the
Company.

For Price Waterhouse For Chanuvedi & Shah

Firm Registration Number: 301112E Firm Registration Number: 101720W

Chartered Accountants Chartered Accountants

Privafishu Gundana Vijay Napawaliya

Partner Partner

y{cmbm'ship Number: 109553 Membership Number: 10985¢

Place: Mumbai Place: Mumbai

Date: April 12, 2017 Date: April 12, 2017



Balance Sheet as at March 31, 20417
Particulars
ASSETS

Non-current agsets
Properly, planl and eguipment
Financial assets

Invastiments

Qther financial assets
Other non-current assels

Currgnt assets
Financial assels
Investmenis
Trade receivabies
Cash and cash equivalents

Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalenls

Loans

Other financial assels
Current tax assets (net)
Other current assets

Total Assets
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

Equity

Equity share capital

Other equity
Instrument enlirely aquity in nature
Reserves and surplus

Liahilities

Non-current liabilities

Financial liabilities
Borrowings

Provisions

Other non-currenl iabililies

Current liahitities
Finanoal liabilities

Trade payables

Olher financial iabilities
Other current liabilities
Provisions
Current tax Liabilities (net)

Total Equity and liabilities

Rupees in lakhs

Note As at As oat As at
No. March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016 April 31, 2615
4.1 50,918 58910 G3.07
4.2(a) 4,514 4,511 4,511
4.2{b} 484 300 810
4.3 - 36 888
4.4(a} - - 4.746
4.4{t) 6,965 2116 1.995
4.4{c) 3,440 5.014 832
4.4(d) 750 773 -
4. 4{2) 12,826 12,126 8,506
4.4{f) 66 €6 56
4.5 - 184 -
4.6 3 18 5
79,963 84,054 85.270
4.7 g0 20 90
4.8
89 89 89
32,300 31.415 30,933
4.9 42,513 47 521 48,460
4,10 2 8 2
4,11 40 201 436
4.12(a} 98 91 98
4.12{b) 4,581 4.485 4,586
4.13 178 174 110
4.14 6 @ @
415 66 . 467
79,963 34,054 85,270

@ Amount 1s befow Lhe rounding off norm adopted by ihe Company.

Significant accounling policies
Motes to financial stalements

The accompanying notes are an integral parl of these financial slalements,

2
1te 20
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Dhursar Sclar Power Private Limited
As per our Reporl of even date.

For Price Waterhouse
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No: 301112 E

Priy(aﬁ’smt Gundana

2artner
)'rembership No. 109553

For Chaturvedi & Shah
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No: 101720 W

vijay Napawalnya
Partner
Membership No. 109859

Place : Mumbai

Date : AFrJ) {22017

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

r
Mantu Kumar Ghosh
Director
DIN Number 07544389

EE T A

Dinesh Navnitlal Modi
Director
DIN Number: 00004556

Place : Mumbai

Date : Aﬂw"‘( [z, 20)%



Dhursar Solar Power Private Limited
Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2017

Rupees in lakhs

Year ended
March 31, 2017

Year ended

Particulars - Note
No.
Revenue from operations 4:16

Oiher Income ) 417

Total Income

Expenses
Employee benefits expense ) 4,18
Finance cosis = ’ 4.19
Depreciation expense 41
Otlher expenses . ’ 4,20

Total expenses
Profit before tax

Income tax expense .
Current tax” ‘ T ) 1
Deferred lax - ' . B

Profit for the year (A)

Other Comprehensive Income

ltems that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
Remeasurements of net defined benefil plans - R

Other Comprehensive income for the year {B)

Total Comprehensive Income for the year (A+B})

Earnings per equity share: {Face value of Rs. 10 each)

Basic (Rupees) - ; 10.

Diluted (Rupees) : ' : 10
Significanl accounting policies .2
Notes on financial siatemenls : - 1 to 20

The accompanying noles are an integral parl of lhese financial statements

March 31, 2016

95 -

12,150 11,945
504 " 819
12,654 12,764
65
2.705 2538
6,885 7.472
1,408 1,971
11,064 12077
1,590 887
700 207
890 480
{5) n2,
(5) 2
885 482
98.46 53.12
49.51 26.71



Dhursar Solar Power Private Limited
As per our Report of even date.

For Price Waterhouse
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No: 301112 E

Pyanshu Gundana
Partner
)i\ziembers'mp No. 109553

For Chaturvedi & Shah
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No: 101720 W

Vijay Napawaliya
Partner
Membership No. 109859

Place : Mumbai

Date : ATU‘UO} jQ} 20 17

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

-~
fMantu Kumar Ghosh
Direclor
DIM Mumber 07644889

Dinesh Navnitlal Modi
Direclor
DIN Number Q0004558

Piace : Mumbai

Dale : A‘{\Wdl ]9_;‘2{3-"7'



Dhursar Solar Power Private Limited
Cash Flow Statement for the year ended March 31, 2017

(A)

{B)

&)

Cash Flow from/! (used in) operating activities

Profil betore 1ax
Adjustments for:
Depreciation expenses
Finance cost
Interest income
Dividend income on current investments (non lrade)
Profit on sale of current invesiment {non {rade)
Gain on Gerivative
Excess Provision wrilten back
Other non-cperating incoma

Operating profit before working capital changes
Adjusted for:
Increase/ {decrease) in Irade payables
Increase/ (decrease) in other current financials liabilities
Increase/ (decrease) in other liabilities and provisions
{Increase) decrease in Trade receivables
{Increase) decrease in olher current financials Assels
{increase) decrease in loans and advances

Taxas paid (nel of refunds)
Met cash Irom Operating Aclvities
Cash Flow from/ {used in} investing activities

Purchase of Property, plant and equipmeni (including capital
advance and retenlion monegy)

Procead Irom sale of curent investments {non trade)
Dividend income from current investments (non trade}
interest received from deposits

Inter corperate deposit placed

Inter corporate deposit refunded

{Increase) in other bank balances

Net cash flow from/ {used) in Investing Activitres
Cash Flow from/ {usad in) financing activities

Repayment of long term borrowings
Interest and linance charges paid

Net cash (used in) financing activities
Net Increase/ {decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C)

Cash and cash equivalents al the beginning of the year:
Bank balance - current account”
8ank balance - fixed deposit account*
Cash and cash equivalents al the end of the year:
Bank balance - current account’
Bank balance - fixed deposit account”

“including interest on Fixed deposils classified as cash and cash equivalents.

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financials siatements.

Year ended
March 31, 2017
Rupees in lakhs

Year ended
March 31, 2016
Rupees in lakhs

1,590 687
6,885 7.472
2,705 2,538

(498) {203)
- {2)
- (223)
(390)
- 4}
(8) -
10,676 6,878
7 (7)
14 (208)
{154) (164)
{4,849) {(121)
- (1)
14 (14)
57068 9,354
{450) {859)
5258 8,495
10 402
- 4,969
. 2
521 233
(1,000) {5.153)
300 1,503
- (773)
{169) 1,183

{4,243} {4.224)
{2,420) £1,322)
{6,663} {5.546)
{1,574} 4,132

73 14
4,941 568
176 73
3.264 4,941



Dhursar Solar Power Private Limited
As per our Report of even date,

For Price Waterhouse
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No: 301112 E

Priy s/hu“Gundana
Pafiner
embership No. 109553

For Chaturvedi & Shah
Charterad Accountants
Firm Registration No: 101720 W

Vijay Napawaliya
Partner
Membership No. 109859

Place : Mumbai

Dale : A.[mﬂ 12, 20 14

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Mantd Kumar Ghesh
Oiractor
OIN Number 07644886

Dinesh Navnitlal Modi
Director
DIN Number: 00004556

Place : Mumbai

vete | Anll 12,2017
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Dhursar Solar Power Private Limited
As per our Reporl of even dale,

For Price Waterhouse For and on behaif of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registralion No: 301112 E

Prigyfnshkhu Gundana
Partner Mantu Ku/mar Ghosh
Membership No. 109553 Director

DIN Number 07644889

For Chaturvedi & Shah
Charterad Accountants
Firm Registration No: 101720 W

Dinesh Navnitlal Modi
Directar
O Mumber: Q0004556

Vijay Napawaliya
Partner
Membership No. 109859

Place : Mumbai Place : Mumbai

Date - A—F){f} 2, 201 Date AMO’ j2. 201
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Dhursar Solar Power Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements as of and for the year ended March 31, 2017

1

2)

General information

Dhursar Solar Power Private Limited is a wholly owned subsidiary of Reliance Power Limiled. The Compdny had
developed and is operating a 40 MW Solar Photo-Vellaic Power Plant al Dhursar, District Jaisalmer, Rajasthan. The
Company has entered into long term Power Purchase Agreement (PPA) with Reliance Infraslructure Limited (R-Infra) for
its entire capacity. The Company has declared commercial operation from March 28. 2012

The Company's name was changed to Dhursar Solar Power Privale Limited from Dahanu Sotar Power Private Limited
with effect from Seplember 2, 2013.

The Company is a private limited company which 15 incorporated and domiciled n India under the provisions of Lhe
Companies Act, The registered office of lhe Company is located al H Block, 1st Floar. Dhirubhai Ambani Knowledge
City, Navi Mumbai - 400710.

These financial statements were autherised for issue by the beard of directors on April 12, 2017,
Significant accounting policies:
2.1 Basis of preparation, measurement and significant accounting policles

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these financial stalements are sel out below. These
policies have been consislently applied to all the years presented, unless olherwise slated.

{z) Basis of preparation

The financial slatements of the Company have been prepared In accordance with Indian Accounting Slandards
{"Ind AS") nolified under the Companies {Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and relevant provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act™). Thase are the Company's first Ind A3 financial statements and Ind AS 101,
First-time Adoption of Indian Accounting Standards’ has been applied. The policies set oul below have been
consistently applied during the year presenled.

For all periods up to and including the year ended March 31, 2018, the Company prepared its financial statements
in accordance with the accounling standards notified under Companies (Accounting Standard) Rules, 2006 (as
amended) and olher relevant provisions of lhe Act {"Previous GAAP™).

These financial statemenls for the year ended March 31, 2017 are lhe frst the Company has prepared in
accordance wilh Ind AS. An explanation of how the transilion from previous GAAP lo Ind AS has affected the
Company's financial position, financial performance and cash flows including reconciliations and descriptions of
the effect of the lransition are provided in nole 3 below.

Functional and presentation currency
The financial stalements are presented in 'Indian Rupees’, which is also the Group's functional currency All
amounts are rounded to the nearest lakhs, unless otherwise staled.

Historical cost convantion
The financial statements have been prepared under the hislorical cost convention, as moedified by Lhe following’

= Cerlain nancial assets and financial liabilites at fair value;
+ Definud benefit plans - plan assels that are measured at fair value;

Fair value measurement

Fair value is the pnice thal would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between markel participanis al the measuremenl date. The Company uses valualion techniques that are
appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufiicient data are available 10 measure lair value, maximising the
use of relevani observable inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabililies for which fair value is measured or disclosed in lhe financial slatemenls are calegorised
within the fair vaiue hierarchy, described as foflows, based on the lowesl level inpul thal is significanl o the fair
value measuremenl as a whole:

¢ Level 1 — Quoted (unadjusled) markel prices in active markets for idenlical ass21s or liabihties
+ Level 2 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level inpul lhal is significanl to the fair value

;«,—mma% direclly or indirectly observahle—
‘L\aﬁ{{:ﬂ}o yation techniques for erh e !Gw’. _‘1 level inpul lhal is significant to the fair value
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Notes to the financial statements as of and for the year ended March 31, 2017 {continued}

(b}

(c)

Current vis-a-vis non-current classification

The assets and liabilities reported in the balance sheet are classified on a “currentnon-current basis”™, with
separate reporiing of assets held for sale and liabilities. Current assets. which include cash and cash eqguivalents,
are assets thal are inlended to be realized, sold or consumed during the normal operating cycle of the Company
orin the 12 months following Lhe balance sheet date; currant liabilities are liabilities that arg expected to be sellled
during the normal operating cycle of the Company or within the 12 months following the close of the financial year,

Recent accounting pronouncements
Standards issued hut not yet effective

Amendment to Ind AS 7:

The amendment to Ind AS 7 requires the enlilies to provide disclosures thal enable users of financial statements
to evaluate changes in liabllities arising from financing activities, including bolh changes arising from cash flows
and non-cash changes, suggesting inclusion of a reconciliation between the opening and closing balances in lhe
balance sheel for liabililies arising from financing aclivities. lo meet the disclosure requiremant

Property, plant and equipment

Freehold land is carried al historical cost. All other items of property, plant and equipment are stated al cost net of
recovarable taxes, duties. trade discount and rebate less accumulated deprecialion and impairment loss if any
Historical cost includes expendilure that is directly attribulable to the acquisition of the items. Subsequent costs
are included in the asset's carrying amount or recognised as a separate assel, as appropriate, only when it is
probabie that future economic benefits associated with the itern will flow to the Cempany and the coslt of the item
can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of any componen! accounted for as a separate asset is
derscognised when replaced. All other repairs and maintenance are charged lo profit or loss during the reporting
seriod in which they are incurred.

Spara parts ara recognised when they meet the definition of property. plant and equipment, otharwise, such itams
are classilied as inventory.

Expendilure lncurred an assats which are nel ready for their intendad use comprising diract cost, refated incidenial
axpenses and allributable borrowing cost are disclosad under Capital Work-in-Progress.

Transition to Ind AS:
On lransition to Ind AS, the company has electad 1o adopt fair value of alt of its propery. plant and equipment
recognised as al April 1, 2015 as deemed cost.

Depreciation methods, estimated useful lives and residual value:

Depraciation is provided lo the extent of depreciable amount on Written Down Method (WDV) based on useful life
of the assels as prescribed in Parl C of Schedule I} 1o the Companies Acl, 2013 except in respect of Plant and
equipment where useful life has been estimated as 25 years based on Internal assessement and technical
evaluation by management

Particulars Useful tive
Buildings 3 to 30 years
Lease hold land 30 years
property. planl and equipment 3 to 25 years
Furniture and fixlures 10 years
Motor Vehicles 3 lo 8 years
Office equipments 3 lo & years
Computers 3 lo B years

In respect of addilions or exlensions forming an integral parl of existing assets and insurance spares, including
incremental cost arising on account of translation of foreign currency liabilities for acquisition of Fixed Assets,
depreciation is provided as aforesaid over the residual life of the respective assels.

Estimaled useful lives. residual values and deprecialion methods are reviewed annually, laking inlo account
commercial and technological obsclescence as well as normal wear and tear and adjusted prospectively, 1
appropriate.

Lease hold land is amortised over the lease period from the dale of recept ol advance possession or execulion of
lease deed, whichever is earlier.
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Notes to the financial statements as of and for the year ended March 31, 2017 {continued)

(d)

(e)

(f}

(@)

Intangibie assets:

Intangible assets are slated at cost of acquisilion net of recoverable laxes less accumulated amortization /
depletion and impairment loss, if any. The cost comprises of purchase price, borrowing cests and any cost
directly attributabie to bringing the asset lo its working condition for lhe intended use.

Expendilure incurred on acquisilion of intangible assels which are not ready to use at the reporting date is
disclosed under "inlangible assets under development”.

Amortisation method and periods

Amortizalion is charged on a straighl-line basis over the estimated useful lives. The eslimaled uselul life and
amortization melhod are reviewed ai the end of each annual reporling period. wilh Lhe effect of any changes in
the estimate being accounted for on a prospective basis.

Computer and software are amotised over the esimated useful live of lhree years

Impairment of non-financial assets

Assels which are subject {0 depreciation or amorlisation are tested for impairment whenever events or changes
in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment 0ss is recognised for
the amount by which the assel's carrying ameunt exceeds its recoverable amounl, The recoverable amaount is the
higher of an asset's fair value less costs of disposal and value in use. For the purposes of assessing impairment,
assels are grouped at lhe lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable cash inflows which are largely
independent of lhe cash inllows from other assels or groups of assets (cash-generating units). Non-financial
assets other than goodwill thal suffered an impairmenl are reviewed for possible revarsal of the impairment at the
end of each reporting period.

Trade Receivable

Trade receivables are recognised initially at fair value and subsequenlly measured at amortised cost using he
effective interesl method, less provision for impairment,

Financial instruments:

A financial instrument Is any contract that gives rise 1o a financial asset of one entily and a financial liability or
equily instruments of another entily.

Investments and other financial assets
i. Classification

The Company classifies ils financial assels in the following measuremenl calegories:
» those i0 be measurad subsequently at fair value {either through other comprehensive income, or
through profit or less), and
s those measurad at amortised cost.

The classification depends on the entily's business model for managing the financial assets and the
contractual terms of the cash flows.

For assets measured at fair value, gains and losses will either be recorded in profil or loss or other
comprehensive income For investiments in debt instruments, this will depend on the business model in
which ihe investment is held.

The Company has selecled lo account for investment in equily instrument of the fellow subsidies at coslin its
financial stalement

The Company reclassifies debl investments when and only when ils business mode! for managing those
assels changes.
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Notes to the financial statements as of and for the year ended March 31, 2017 {continued}

Measurement

Al initiaf recognilion, the Company measures a financial assel al its fair value plus, in the case of a financial
asset nol at fair value through profit or loss. transaction costs thal are direclly altributable lo the acquisition of
lhe financial assel. Transaction cosls of financial assets carried al fair value through profit or loss are
expensed in profit or loss,

Debt instruments: Subsequent measurement of debl instruments depends on the Company's businass
model for managing the asset and the cash flow characleristics of the assel. There are three measurement
categories into which the Company classifies its debt instruments:

Amortised cost: Assets (hal are held for collection of contractual cash flows where those cash flows
represent solely payments of principal and interes! are measured at amorlised cost. A gain or loss on a debt
investment lhat is subsequently measured at amortised cost is recognised in profit or loss when the asset is
derecognised or impaired. Interest income from these financial assets is included in finance income using the
effective intergsl rate method.

Fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI): Assets thal are held lor collection of
contractual cash flows and for selling the financial assets, where lhe assels' cash flows represent solely
payments of principal and interest, are measured at fair value through other comprehensive income {FVOC),
Movemenls in the carrying amount ars laken through OC!. except for the recognilion of impairment gains or
losses, interest revenue and foreign exchange gains and losses which are recognised in profit and loss.
When the financial asset is derecognised, the cumulative gain or loss previously racognised in OCI is
reclassified from equily to profit or loss and recognisad in other gains/ (losses). Interest income from these
financial assels is included in other income using the effective inlerest rate melhod.

Fair value through profit or loss {FVTPL): Assets that do nol meet the criteria for amortised cost or FVOCI
are measured al fair value through profil or loss. A gain or loss on a debl investment that is subsequently
measured al fair value through profit or loss is recognised in profit or loss in the period in which it arises,
Interest income from these financial assets is included in other income.

Equity Investments: The company subsequently measures all equily invastiments (including mvestment in
subsidiarigs) at cost.

Impairment of financial assets

The Company assesses on a forward looking basis Ihe expected credit losses associaled with its assets
carried al amortised cost. The impairment methodology applied depends on whether there has been a
significant increase in credit risk.

For trade receivables only, the Company applies the simplified approach permitted by Ind AS 109 Financial
Instruments, which requires expecled liletime losses lo be recognised from initial recognition of |he
receivables.

Derecognition of financial assets
A financial assel is derecogmised only when:

+ the righis to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or
+ the company has transferred s rights lo receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an
obligalion to pay the received cash flows to one or more recipient

Where the enlily has ransferred an assel, the company evaluates whether it has transferred substantiaily all
risks and rewards of ownership of lhe financial asset. In such cases, the financial asset is derecognised.
Where the entity has not transferred subslanlially all risks and rewards of ownership of [he financial assel, the
financial assel is not derecognised.

Where lhe enlily has neilher transferrad a financial asset nor retains substantially all risks and rewards of
ownership of the linancial asset, the financial asset is derecognised if lhe company has not relained conlrol of
the tinancial assel. Where the company retains control of the financial asset, lhe assel is continued to be
recognised to the extent of conlinuing involvemenlt in the financial assel.
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V.

vi.

{h

(i)

)

)

Income recognition
Interest income

Inlerest income from debl instruments is recognised using ihe effective inleres| rate method. The effective interest
rate is 1he rale that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial asset
Il lhe gross carrying amount of a financial asset. When calculating the effective interest rate. lhe company
estimates the expected cash flows by considering all the contractual lerms of the financial instrument (for
example, prepayment, exiension, call and similar options) bul does not consider the expected cradit losses.

Dividend

Dividends are recognised in profil or loss only when lhe right to receive paymenl is established, 1 is probable that
the economic benefits associated with the dividend will flow to the company, and the amount of the dividend can
be measured reliably,

Derivative Financial Instruments:

Derivalive are initially recognised at fair value on the dale of derivative contract is enlered into and are
subsequently re-measure 1o lheir fair value al the end of the each reporting period. Further gain / (losses) arising
on settlement and fair value change on derivative contracts are classified 1o finance cost.

Offsetting Financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amounl is reported in the balance shest where there i1s a
legally enforceable right 1o offset (he recognised amounls and there is an intention to settle on a net basis or
realise the asset and selille the liability simultaneously. The legally enforceable right musi not be contingent on
future events and musl be enforceable in the normal course of business and in the event of default, insoivency or
bankruptcy of the Company or the counterparty.

Contributed equity

Equity shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs direcily attributable to the issue of new shares or options
are shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds..

Financial liabilities
Classification as debt or equity

Debl and equity instrumenls issued by the company are classified as either financial liabilitizs or as equily in
accordance wilh the subslance of the contractual arrangements and the definition of a financial liability and
an gquity inslrument,

An equity inslrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of an enlity afler
deducting all of its liabilities.

Initial recognition and measurement

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair vaiue and, in the case of loans and borrowings and
payabies, net of direcily atlributable transaction costs.

The Company's financial liabiiities include trade and other payables. loans and borrowings including bank
overdrafis, financial guarantee contracls and derivative financial instruments.

Subseguent measurerment
The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classificalion, as described below:

Borrowings: Borrowings are subsequently carried at amortised cost, any difference belween the proceeds
{net of transaction costs) and the redemption value is recognised in the statement of profit and loss over the
period of the borrowings using the effective interest method.

Fees paid on lhe establishment of loan facililies are recognised as Iransaction costs of the loan to the extent
L-is-protabteitat.spme or all of the facilily will be drawn down. In this case, the fee is deferred until lhe
p@idoﬁ@’g_g;_"(iatéj.ﬁg }}1‘5% lenl thare is no evidence lhal il is probable that some or all of the facility will be
drawndown, the feé’im;épié'&ed as a pre-payment for liguidity. services and amorised over oithe
faqfiity tohich eates,
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Trade and other payable: These amounts represents obligations lo pay for goods or services that have
been acquired in the ordinary course of business from suppliers. These payable are classified as current
liabilites if payment is due within one year or less olherwise they are presented as non-current liabililies.
Trade and payables are subsequently measured al amortised cost using the efiective interest method.

Derecognition

Borrowings are removed from the balance sheel when the obligation specified in the contract is

discharged, cancelled or expired. The difference belween the carrying amounl of a financiai liability that

has been extinguished or transferrad to ancther parly and the consideration paid, including any non-cash
assels transferred or liabilities assumed. is recognised in profit or loss as olher gains/(losses).

When an existing financial liabilily is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different
terms, or lhe lerms of an existing liabilily are substanlially modified, such an exchange or madification is
treated as the derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the
respective carrying amounts is recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Company has an uncenditional righl to defer
settlement of the Lahility for at least 12 monlhs after the reporting period. Where hers is a breach of a
material provision of a fong-term loan arrangemant on or before the end of the reporting period with the
effect that the liability becomes pavable on demand on the reporting date. the enlily does not classify the
liability as current, if the lender agreed, after the reporting period and before the approval of the financial
statements for issue, nol to demand payment as a consequence of the breach.

{k} Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets:

{n

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation as a resull of past
events; il s probable that an outflow of resources will be required lo seitle the obligation; and the amount has
been reliably estimated.

Provisions are measurad at the present value of management's best estimate of the expendilure required \o seitie
the present obligation at the end of the reporting period. The discount rate used o determine the present value is
a pre-lax rate that reflects currenl market assessments of lhe time value of money and lhe risks specific lo the
hability. The increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognised as interesl expense.

Contingent fiabitities

Contingenl liabilities are disclosed when there is a possible obligalion arising from pasl events, the existence of
which wili be cenfirmed only by the occurrence or non-occwrrence of one or more uncerlain future events not
wholly within the contral of the Company. A present obligation that arises from past events where il is either not
probable that an oulflow of resources will be required to sellle or reliable estimate of the amount cannol be made,
is lermed as contingent liability.

Contingent Assets:

A contingen| asset is disclosed, where an inflow of economic benefits is probable.

Borrowing costs

General and specific borrowing cosls that are directly attributable to lhe acquisition, conslruclion or production

of a qualifying asset are capitalised during the period of time thal is required lo complele and prepare the asset

for its intended use or sale. Qualifying assets are assels that necessarily take a substantial period of time 1o gel

ready for their inlended use or sale.

Invesiment income earned on the temporary invesiment of specific borrowings pending their expendilure on
qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for capitahsation.

Other borrowing costs are expensed in he period in which they are incurred.
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(m}

(n)

(o)

Foreign currency translation:
Functional and presentation currency
liems included in the financial statements of the Company are measured using the currency of the primary

economic environment in which the Company operates {'lhe functional currency’). The financial statements are
presented in ‘Indian Rupees’ (Rs.). which 1s the Company's functional and the Company's presentation currency

. Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transaclions are translated into the functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing at
the dates of the transactions.

All exchange differences arising on reporting foreign currency meonetary items at rates different from those al
which hey were initially recorded are recognised in the Siatement of Profit and Loss.

In respect of foreign exchange differences arising on revaluation or setliemen! of long term foreign currency
monetary items, the Group has availed the option available in the Ind AS-101 1o continue the policy adopted in
Previous GAAP for accounting of exchange differences arising from translation of long-term foreign currency
monetary items oulstanding as on March 31, 2016, wherein:

*  Foreign exchange differences on account of depreciable asset. is adjusted in the cost of depreciable assal
and would be depreciated over the balance life of assel.

Non-menetary Hems denominaled in foreign currency are stated at lhe rates prevailing on the date of Ihe
fransactions / exchange rate at which transaction is aclually effected

Revenue recognition:

Revenue s measurad at the fair value of the consideration received or recewvable. Amounts disclosed as revenue
are nef of discounts, relurns: value added taxes and amounts collecled on behalf of third parties.

The Company recognises revenue when the amount of revenue can be reliably measured, it is probable thal
fulure economic benefits will flow o lhe entily and specific criteria have been met for each of lhe Company's
aclivities as descrbed below. The Company bases ils estimales on historical resulis, 1aking into consideration the
lype of lransaction and lhe specifics of each arrangement

Sale of energy

Revenue from sale of energy is recognised on an accrual basis as per the tarilf rate notified by Central Electricity
Regulatory Commission (CERCY) in accordance with the provisions of Power purchase agreement {PPA) with
Reliance Infrastructure Limited {R- infra).

Other operating income
Revenue from certihed reduclion units is recognised as per terms and condilions agreed with truslee on fulure
sale of cerified emission reduclion units..

Employee benefits:
Short-term obligations

Liabilites for wages and salaries, including non-monetary benefils thal are expected lo be setiled wholly within 12
‘monlhs after the end of the period in which the employees render the related service are recognised in respect of
employees’ services up to the end of lhe reparting period and are measured at the amounls expected 1o be paid
when the liabilities are sellled. The liabilities are presented as current employee benelil obligations in lhe balance
sheel.

Other long-term employee benefit obligations

The liabilities for earned leave and sick leave are nol expected o be seltled wholly wilhin 12 months after the end
of the period in which the employees render the relaled service. They are therefore measured as the present
value of expected future payments o be made in respecl of services provided by employees up to the end of Lhe
reponing period using the projeciad unit credit method. The benefits are discounted using the markel yields at the
end of the reporting period that have terms approximating lo lhe terms of the related obligalion. Remeasuremenlts
as a resull of experience adjustments and changes in acluarial assumiplions are recognised in profit or loss.

~The pbligationsarg presented as current liabilities in the balance sheet if the entity does not have an unconditional
Jight e "defen setiiement for at leasl twelve months,afte the reporting period, regardless of when the actuat

Y

selllement is expectedio ocour
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(p}

Post employee obligations

The Company operates the following post-employmen! schemes:
- defined benefit plans such as gratuity
- defined contribution plans such as provident fund,

Gratuity obligations

The liability or asset recognised in lhe balance sheel in respecl of defined benefit gratuity plans is the present
value of the defined benefit obligation al the end of the reporting period less the fair valug of plan assels. The
defined benefit obligalion is calculated annually by acluaries using the projecled unit credil method.

The present value of the defined benefit obligation denominated in Rupees is determined by discounting Lhe
estimated future cash outflows by reference to market yields at the end of the reporling pericd on government
bonds that have terms approximating 1o the terms of the relaled obfigation.

The nel mterest cost is calculaled by applying the discount rate to the nel balance of the defined benefit obligation
and the fair value of plan assets. This cost is included in employee benefit expensea in the statement of profit and
loss.

Remeasurement gains and losses arising from experience adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions are
recognised in the pericd in which they occur, directly in olher comprehensive income. They are included in
retained earnings in the statement of changas in equity and in the balance sheel.

Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation resulting from plan amendments or curailments are
recognised immedialely in profit or loss as pasl service cost.

Defined contribution pfans

Provident fund

The Company pays provident fund contributions to publicly administered provident funds as per locai reguiations.
The Company has no further payment obligations once lhe contributions have been paid. The contributions are
accounled for as defined contribution plans and the contributions are recognised as employee benefit expense
when lhey are due. Prepaid contribulions are recognised as an asset 1o lhe extent that a cash refund or a
reduction int the future paymenis is available.

Superannuation

Certain employees of the Company are participanis in a defined contribution plan, The Company has no furlher
obligations to the plan beyond its monthly contributions which are contribuled to a trust fund, the ¢orpus of which
is invested with Reliance Life Insurance Company Limited.

Income tax

The income tax expense or cradil for the period is the tax payable an the current period’s taxable income based
on lhe applicable income lax rale for each jurisdiclion adjusted by changes in deferred tax assels and liabililies
atiributable to temporary differences and to unused tax losses.

The current income tax charge is caiculated on the basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the
end of the reporting. Management periodically evaluales positions taken in tax returns with respect 1o situations in
which applicable tax regulalion is subject to interpretalion. It establishes provisions where appropriate on the basis
of amounts expected to be paid to the tax aulhorities.

Deferred income tax is provided in full. on temporary differences arising belween the t{ax base of assets and
liabililies and their carrying amounts in the financial stalements. Deferred income lax is also not accounted for if it
arises from inilial recognition of an asset or liabilily in & transaction olher than a business combination thal at the
time of lhe transaction affecls neither accounting profit nor laxable profit {tax loss). Deferred income tax is
determined using tax rales (and laws) thal have been enacted or substantially enacted by the end of the reporling
period and are expected 10 apply when the related deferred income 1ax asset is realised or the deferred income
tax liahility is seltled.

Deferred 1ax assels are recognised for all deductible temporary differences and unused tax losses only if it is
probable lhat future taxable amounts will be available lo ulilise those lemporary diflerences and losses.

Deferred tax-assels and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right lo offsel current {ax assets

a;ﬂrhqb igies Cur?. x assels and tax ligbilities are offsel where the enlity has a legally enforceatle-tight to
qﬁsM & pﬁdé élmert settle on a net basis or to realise the asset and settle the liability sim @*(‘Jﬁ#ﬂw g
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{a)

(r)

{t)

{u)

(v)

Current and deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss, except lo lhe extent thal it relates (o items recognised in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity. In lhis case, the tax is also recognised in ather comprehensive

. income or direclly in equily, respectively

Cash and cash equivalents

For lhe purpose ol presentation in the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents includes cash on hand,
demand deposits with banks. shorl-term balances {with an original maturity of three months or less from date of
acquisition). highly liquid invesiments lhal are readily converlible into known amounts of cash and which are
subjecl to insignilicanl risk of changes in value

Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share
Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing:

- thé profit altributable to owners of the Coampany
- by lhe weighted average number of equily shares oulstanding during the financial year.

Diluted earnings per share
Diluted earnings per share adjusts the figures used in the delerminalion of basic earnings per share {o take into
account;

- lhe after income lax effect of inlerest and other financing costs asscciated with dilutive potential equity shares,
and

- the welghted average nuinber of addilional equily shares 1hat would have been outslanding assuming the
conversion of all dilulive potenlial equity shares

Cash flow statement

Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby profit before lax is adjusted for the effects of
transaclions of non-cash nature and any deferrals or accruals of pasl or future cash receipls or payments. The
cash flows from operating, investing and financing activities of the Company are segregated based on the
available information.

Segment reporting

Operating segmenls are reporled in & manner consistenl wilh the internal reperiing provided 1o the chief operaling
decision-maker. The chief operating decision-maker, who is responsible for allocating resources and assessing
performance of the cperating segments, has been idenlified as the Project Direclor of Company that makes
slralegic decisions.

Dividends:

Provision 18 made for the amounl of any dividend declared, being appropriately authorised and no longer at the
discretion of the entity, on or belore (he end of the reporting period bul not disinbuled at the end of the reporiing
period.

Business combinations

Business combinalions involving entities thal are controlled by lhe Company are accounted for using he pooling
of intarests method as foltows:

fiy The assels and liabilities of the combining entities are reflected at their carrying amounts

{ii} No adjusiments are made to reflect fair values, or recognise any new assels or labitilies.

(i) Adjustments are only made o harmonise accounling policies.

{iv} The financial information in the financial statements in respect ol prior periods is reslated as if the
business combinalion had occurred [rom Lhe beginning of the preceding peried in he financial
stalements, rrespective of lhe actual date of the combination. However, where the business combinalion
had occurred after (hat dale. the prior pericd informalion is restated only from that dale.

(v} The balance of the relained earnings appearing in the financial statements of the transferor is
aggragaled with the corresponding balance appearing in the inancial statlements of lhe transferee or1s
adjusted against general reserve.

{vi) The identity of the reserves are preserved and the reserves of the iransferor become the reserves ol the

—\'rf-‘au::‘z{eg,k,
g'_')lh.‘_{ﬂ J,ﬁ'r“\ﬁmr e, if my hnl\“wm Ihu— amaou |1I~1 {f-_‘J..mer i as share capital issued plus any additional
i amounl of share capital Of the transferor is

ity from other capital reserves




Dhursar Solar Power Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements as of and for the year ended March 31, 2017 (continuead)

2.2 Critical accounting estimates and judgments

(a)

{b}

{c)

{d)

Preparing the financial staternents under Ind AS requires management to lake decisions and make estimatas and
assumptions lhat may impacl the value of revenues, costs, assels and liabilities and the related disclosures
concerning lhe items involved as weil as contingent assets and liabilities al the balance sheet.date. Estimates and
judgements are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other factors, including
expectalions of future events Lhat are believed to be reasonable under the circumslances.

The Company make estimates and assumplions concerning the future. The resulling accounling estimates will, by
definition, seldom equal the refated aclual results, The estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk of
causing a material adjustment 1o the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are
discussed below:

Usefui fives of Power Plant and Depreciation method

Management of the Company decided lhe estimated useful lives of power plant and respective depreciation. The
accounting estimate is based on the expecled wears and tears incurred during power ganeralion. Wears and
tears can be significanliy different following renovation each time. When the useful lives differ from the original
eslimated useful ives. managemenlt will adjust the estimated useful ives accordingly. It is possible thal the
estimates made based on existing experience are different to Ihe actual outcomes within the next financial period
and could cause a material adjustment to the carrying amount of Property, Plant and Equipments (refer nole 4.1).

Income taxes and Deferred tax

There are transactions and calculations for which lhe ulimate tax determination is uncertain and would get
finalized on completion of assessment by tax authorities. Whera the final tax outcome is different from the
amounts that were initially recorded, such differences will impact the income ax and deferred tax provisions in the
period in which such determination is made.

Deferred tax on temporary differences reversing within the tax holiday period is measured at the lax rales that are
expected lo apply during the tax holiday period, which is lhe lower tax rate or the nil tax rate. Deferred tax on
temperary differences reversing after the tax holiday period is measured at the enacted or substanlively enacted
tax rales that are expected o apply after the 1ax holiday period (refer note 11).

impairment of assets

Al the end of each reporting penod, the Company reviews Lhe carrying amounls of its Properly, plant and
equipment to determine whether there is any indicalion lhat those assels have suffered an impairment loss. If any
such indication exists. the recoverable amounl of ihe assel / residual value is estimated in ordear o delermine the
extent of the impairment loss {if any).).

Recoverable amount of Praperty, plant and equipment is ihe higher of its {air value less cosls of disposal and
value in use. Value in use is usually determined on lhe basis of discounted eslimaled future cash flows. This
involves management estimates on anticipated efficiency of the plant, fuel availability at economical rates,
economic and regulatory envircnment, discount rales and other factors. Any subsequent changes lo cash flow
due to changes in the above menlioned factors could impact the carrying value of assels.

Fair value measurement and valuation process

The Company has measured cerlain assels and liabilities at fair value for financial reporting purposes. The
rmanagement determines the appropriate valualion lechnique and inputs for fair value measurement. In estimating
the fair value, the management engages third party gualilied valuer 1o perform the valuations.

Eslimates and judgements are based on historical experience and other faclors, including expeclations of fulure
events thal may have a financial impact on the Company and thal are believed 1o be reascnable under the
circumstances {refer nole 12 and 13).



Dhursar Solar Power Private Limited
Notes to the financlal statements as of and for the year ended March 31, 2017 {continued)

3

Transition to Ind AS:

The Company has adopted Indian Accounling Standards {Ind AS) as nolified by lhe Minislry of Corporate Affairs with
effect from April 01, 2016. with a lransilion date of April 01, 2015 These financial statements for the year ended March
31. 2017 are ihe first the Company has prepared under Ind AS For all periods uplo and including the year ended
March 31, 2018. the Company prepared its financiat statements in accordance with the previously applicable Indian
GAAP (previous GAAP).

The adoption of Ind AS has been carried out in accordance with Ind AS 101. First-time Adoption of Indian Accounling
Slandards. Ind AS 101 requires Lhat all Ind AS standards and interpretations thal are issued and effeclive for Lhe first
Ind AS financial stalements be applied retrospeclively and consistenlly for aii financial years presented. Accordingly,
the Company has prepared financial statements which comply with Ind AS for year ended March 31, 2017, together
with the comparative information as al and for lhe year ended March 31, 20186. The Company’s opening Ind AS
Balance Sheel has been prepared as at April 01, 2015, the date of transition to Ind AS.

A, Exemptions and exceptions availe

In preparing these Ind AS financial statements, the Company has availed certain exemplions and exceptions in
accordance with Ind AS 101, as explained below. The resulling difference between the carrying values of the
assels and liabilities in the financial statements as at the transilion date under Ind AS and previous GAAP have
been recognised directly in equity {relained earnings or another appropriate category of equily). This nole explains
the adjustments made by the Company in restaling ils previous GAAP financial stalements, including the Balance
Sheet as al April 01, 2015 and the financiat statemenls as at and lor the year ended March 31, 2016,

{a} Ind AS optional exemptions
i. Deemed cost

ind AS 101 permits a first-time adopter to measure all of its properly, planl and equipmenl as recognised in lhe
financial statements as at the date of lransition to Ind AS at fair value or previous GAAP carrying vaiue and use
that as its deemed cost as at the date of transition after making necessary adjustments for de-commissioning
labilities. Accordingly, the company has elected to measure alt of its property, planl and equipment {(PPE) at their
fair values

ii. Long term foreign currency menetary items

Ind AS 101 permits a first time adopter to continue the acceunting policy adopted for accounting for exchange
differences arising from transiation of long-term foreign currency monetary items recognized in the financial
tatemenls for the year ending March 31, 2016. The company has opled lo follow this exemption.

iil. Investments in fellow subsidiaries

When an entily prepares separate financial statements, Ind AS 27 requires il to account for its investmenls in
subsidiaries, join! venlures and associates either at cost or in accordance with Ing AS 109, Ind AS 101
provides an oplion to measures such an investmenl as on transilion date as follows:

a) cost determined in accordance with Ind AS 27, or

b) deemed cost,

The deemed cos! of such an invesiment shall be its:
(i) fair value as at lhe date of transition to Ind AS n its separate financial statements; or
{ii} previous GAAP carrying amount at that date.

The Company has elected lo account lor the investment in associates and joint ventures at cost in its financial
statements.



Dhursar Solar Power Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements as of and for the year ended March 31, 2017 (continued)

(b) Ind AS mandatory exemptions

The company has applied the following exceptions from full retrospective apphcation of Ind AS as mandatonly
required under Ind AS 101:

i. Estimates
An entity's estimates in accordance wilh Ind ASs at the date of transillion loInd AS shall be consistent with
esiimates rnade for the same dale in accordance with previous GAAP (afler adjustments (o reflect any difference
in accounting palicies). unless there is objective evidence that those estimates were in error.
Ind AS estimates as at April 01, 2015 are consistent wilh the estimates as at the same date made in conformity
wilh previous GAAP The Company made estimates for following ilems in accordance wilh Ind AS at the date of
transition as these were nol required under previous GAAR:
< Impairment of financial assels based on expected credit loss model

ii. Classification and measurement of financial assets
Ind AS 101 requires an entily to assess classification and measurement of financial assets {debt instrumenls) on
the basis of the facls and circumstances that exist at the dale of transilion to Ind AS Consequently, the Company
has applied the above assessment based on facts and circumstances exist al the lransiton date.

B. Reconclliations between previcus GAAP and Ind A3
ind A3 101 requires an entity to recancile equily, lotal comprebensive income and cash llows for prior periods.
The regrouped previous GAAP information is derived based on Ihe audited linancial slatements of lhe Company

for year ended March 31, 20186,

The following lables represent the reconciliations from previous GAAP to Ind AS.



Dhursar Sclar Power Private Limited
Notes to financial statements as of and for the year ended March 21, 2017 {continued)

3.1 Reconcillation of total equity as at March 31, 2016 and April 01, 2015
Rupees in lakhs

Pacticulars Note  March 31, 2016 April 01, 2015
Total equity {shareholder's lunds) as per previous GAAP 20,627 19,262
Adjustments

Fair vaiuation of PPE as deemed cost (9| 7680 8.800
Amortization of borrowing cost cz2 1.830 2,223
Changes in falr value of derivative contracis c3 1,958 826
Change in fair value in current investmenls c4a - i
Total adjustments 11,568 11,850
Totral equily as per Ind AS 31,594 31,112

8.2 Reconcilfation of total comprehensive income for the year ended 31 March 2016
Rupees in lakhs

Particulars Note  March 21, 2018

Profit after lax as per previous GAAP 764

Adiustments:

Depreciation on Increased o far valuaton of property, piant and

equipmeant Ci {1.120}
Amortization of borrowing cosl cz2 {293}
Changes in fair value of derivalve conlracts Cc3 1,132

Change in fair value of Invesiment in current investments C4 {1}
Actuarial gains on post-employmeant benefit obligation recognised

in other comprehansive income Ca {2
Total adjustments {284)
Profit after tax as per Ind AS (A) 480

Other Comprehensive Income

Remaasurements of net dalined banefit plans c5 2
Other Comprehensive Income for the year (B) 2
Total Comprehensive Inceme for the year (A+B) 482
B.3 impact of Ind AS adoption on the stataments of ¢ash flows for the year ended 31 March 2016 Rupees in lakhs

Effect of
Particulars As per Previous transition to
GAAP- Ind AS As per Ind AS

MNet cash flow from operaling activities 8495 - 83495
Mel cash flow from investing activities 1,183 - 1,183
MNat cash flow from financing aclivilies {5.548) - (5,546}
Net increasef{decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 4,132 B 4,132
Cash and cash equivalenls as at April 01, 2015 882 - 882
Cash and cash equivaients as at March 31, 2016 5,014 - 5.014

B.4 Analysis of changes in cash and cash equivalents for the purposes of statement of cash flows under Ind AS
Rupees in lakhs

Particulars March 31, 2016 Apcil 01, 2015
Cash and casbh equivalents as per previous GAAP 5.014 882
Cash and cash equivalents for the purpose of 5.014 882

statement of cash flows




Chursar Solar Power Private Limited
Notes to financial statements as of and for the year ended March 31, 2017 (continucd}

C: Notes to first-lime adoption:

C.1: Deemed cost - Progerty, Plant and equipment

Undar the previous GAAP, property, plant and equipment, being were carried al cost. Under Ind AS, the company has elected to carry
such property, plant and equipment at fair value as deemed cost. Accordingly, the campany has recognized fair value changes of
R35.8.300 lakhs in plant and equipment as on Aprit 01, 2015.

Curing the FY 2015-16. The Company has also charged the depreciation of Rs, 1,120 fakhs

C 2: Borrowings at amoriised cost

Under the pravious GAAP, bormowing transaction costs (such as loan processing fees ete.) were amortised either on straight line basis
over the term of borrowing or upfront capitalised to tixed assels as part of pre-operative expenditure. Under Ind AS, borrowings are initially
racognised on net off transaction costs. Transaction costs are deferred and recognised over the lfe of the loan as an adjusiment of interest
expense and armortised using the effective interest rale (EIR) method.

Conseguent 1o above, the otal equity as at March 31, 2018 is increased by Rs.1.930 lakhs {Apail 01, 2015 - Rs. 2.223 lakhs} and profit for
the year endad March 31, 2016 is decreased by Rs. 293 lakhs.

C 3: Fair valuation of Derivative contract

Under INDAS, all the dervative instrumenis are fair valued with recognition of both gains and Iosses In Statement of Preiit and Loss 3s
agamst under Frevious GAAR anly losses on derivalive contracts are recognised on marking them to marksat (as per lhe announcement by
inslitute of Chartered Accountant of India

Consaquent to above, the tofal equity as at 31 March 2018 increased by Rs. 1.958 1akhs {1 April 2015 Rs 826 lakhs) and profit for the year
sngted March 31, 2016 is increased by Rs. 1,132 lakhs.

C 4: Fair valuation of current investments
Under the previous GAAP, Invastment in mutual fund were classified as current investment and were carried at lower of cost and far
valua IND AS require mutual fund investment to be measurad at fair value through profit and loss (FYTP),

Consequent to above, tha total equity as al 31 March 2016 increased by Rs. Nil (1 Apni 2015 Rs (1 lakh)) and prafit for the year ended
March 31, 2016 1s decreased by Rs. 1 fakh,

C 5: Remeasurements of post-employment benefit obligations

Under [nd AS. Remeasurements Le. actuarial gains and Iossas and the retumn on plan assets, excluding amounts included in the nat
interast expense on the net defined benefit liability are recognised in other comprehensive Income instead of profil or loss. Under the
previous GAAR, these Remeasuraments ware forming part of the profit or loss for the year, As a result of this change, the profit Ior the
year ended March 31, 2016 decreased by 2 lakhs. There Is no impacl on the total equity as al March 31. 2016,

C 6: Retained earnings
Ratained earmings as at April 01, 2015 has been adjusted consequen to the above Ind AS wansilion adjusiments,

C 7: Other comprehensive income

Inder Ind AS, all iterms of income and expense recognised in a pedad should be included in profit or loss (o lhie penod, unless a standard
requires or permits otherwise. ltems of income and expense that are not recognised in profit or loss bul are shown in the statemen! of
profit and loss as 'olher comprehensive income’ includes Remeasuraments of defined benefit plans and fair valuation of investments in
subsidiaries.
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Dhursar Sotar Power Privale Limited

Motos to the financial stalements as of and lor tha year ended March 31, 2007 (continuad)

4.2ta)

4.2(13)

4.3

4.4{3)

Particulars

Mon-cutrant financial assols

Non-current investments {Non-trade)
In fetlow subsicianes
(Linguoled. wily pad up valued &t cost)

Praference shares' (Instrumant entirely squity In naturs)

Tato Hydro Powar Private Limited 6 00.000 sbases (March 31 2018 800000 Apit
1, 2015 500 000 shaves| face value of Re 1 sach

Siyem Hycro Pawer Private Limited - 68,000 sharas (March 31 2018 58 200, Agnl
1, 2015 88.000 shares) face Value of Ra. 1 each

Liass Pronagion for dinunuion in ke valua of Invesiment in Siyom Hydes Powa:
Private Limiad

Aggregale ook vailue of LUnquotad Non Curfant investments

The above praference sharas hove been scquired pursuant to the schemes of
amalgarmaton and atrangamant Ralar Note 4 42

Rupees in lakhs
As al Az at Az
March 31, 2017 March 31 2076 Apnk 31 2015

41233 4,233 4233

G 880 GG
402) 1402] {202}

4.511 4,511 4.511

4511 4501 aLn

7.5% Compulsory Convertible Redeemabla Non-Cumulative Proferonce Sharas (CCRPS)
Ag per lerma and conditions of the investmant made n preferance shares of the issuer companias shail have a cail aption on the CCRPS which can be axercisad by tham
v one ot more tranches and o part or m full before the 2nd of agraed tenure (20 years) of the said sharas, In case the call opticn 3 axercised, the CCRPS shall be

ragdeamad ar an IsHug prce (e faca value and pramium) The Company however sball hay

an gption 1o convert tha CCRPS o equity sharas at any time dunng the

tenurz of sucn CCRPS. AL the and of lenure and 19 the extant the isauer Companies o the shara holdees thiareol have not sxercised thalr aptions, the CCRPE shall be
compulsonly convertad imo squity shares. On conversion. In aithar casa each praferance share shall be converted Mo aquity shares of corresponiding value (inchuding
the pramum apphcatle thereon) In casae e ssuer companiss declare dividend an (hair gquity sivares: 1he CCRPS will algo ba antilled to 1he aguity dividend in additian

to the coupon rata of dividend

Other nen-currant finance assets
[Unsagurad and consudered jood)

Securily deposits
Demvative assats (Mark 1o Markar } on detivathes mstiursems Let)

Other non-current assets
(LUnsecurad and considerad jood)

Capital avancas (rafer note N

Current Financial Assets
Current investmants {Hon-Irade)

Unquoted - Mutwal fund units

Refiance Liguid Fund - treasury Plan - Dirgct Growth Plan - Growth Cpion
[Mumber of urits M8 (March 31 2016 NI Agel 1 2016 84 905 18) face valus of
Rs. 1,000 2ach]

Elnguoted - Mutual furd Lels

Ralianee liquidity Tund - Ciract Plan Daly Sividend Remvesimeant Optian

[Mumoer of umits Nil (March 31, 2016 NIl Agell 1. 2015 184, 626.92) face value of
Rs. 1.000 each|

Aggregate amcunt of unguoted invesmens

1 ] t
AR3 25 A9
484 3ug 0

- 36 588
- 3 680
- 2,509

1,847

S - 4. 746
. - 4,746



Ohursar Solar Power Frivate Lonilad
Hotes 1o (ha Rnancisl slatemanls as of and for the year ended March 31, 2017 {continuad)

Rupees in fakhs

Particulars

As at
March 31, 2007

Marcn 31 2016

Az

Aohl 31 2015

4.4{p) Trada recelvables
(Unsecured and cottsered good)

Racawahies from palatad party rater nmla 9)
{Including Rs 1 108 lakhs (March 31, 2016 Rs 1131 lakhs Apnl 12015 Rs
1,084 lakhs} bdled subsequantly ta March 31}

4.d4(c) Cash and cash equivalenis

Balance with banks.
N Guerert BCooun]
in deposl account with gnginal matulisy of less than these manins

4. Hd) Bank balances ather than cash and cash equivalents
Depasils with original maturily of mare than three manths but less tham twelve
morthis

4.4te) Currant Loans
(Unsecuran and considarsd good)

Imat corporale deposils o hoiding company (fafar note 9)
{lridarast fres daposit fora parod ufilo one year )
Agvarices to amiployses

A Othar current financial agsets
(Linsaguran and consitarad gooa)

Sacunty deposits

Adlvanca recoveraole o cash of o kind

4.5 Current tax assels (ot}

Curran| 3% 35Sels (Nt of o

Apr G1.2015 R Nimj

for tax R Mil ihdarcn 31 2018 Ra. 263 Iokhs

4.6 Qher current 33sels
insacured ana considered good)

Balanca wilh gialuigry avtborntias (iInclutles sarica tax cradit and VAT recoyaiabla)

Prapanl axpanses

& 985 2118 1895
6,065 2116 1.895
176 T3 14
3 26Ed 4941 Aca
3.440 5.014 382
7580 T3 :
750 773
12.826 12 12 3508
2 @l
12,426 12126 3,506
5 3% 55
11 11 |
i b6 El]
184 5
184 .
3 i3 5
1 18 5




Dhursar Solar Powor Privale Limited
Notes 1o ha lTnancial statements as of and fof 1he yoar ended March 31, 2017 {continged)

Rupess [n lakhs

As al
March 31, 2016

As 3L
Mareh 31, 2617

Particulare

As at
Aprll 1. 2015

4 7 Share capital

4.7.1

4712

473

4.7.4

Authorised
1 U000 (Karch 31 2016 1 000 GO0 Aprl 1, 2015 1 000,000} aquity shares of Rs. 10 each
10 100 10
100 100 100
Issued, subscribed and paid up capltal
GO 000 (Macon 31 2018 904 000, Apri 1 2015 BO0J.000) aauly shares of Rs W each fully peg-up
a0 an oy
99 an k]

Nurmbers in lakha

March 31. 2017
MNos of Shares

March 31, 2016
Nos of Shares

AprBl 1, 2015
MNos ol Sharas

Raconclliation of number of shares

Equity shares
Halance at tha beginring of the pear - 904 O

March 31, 2006 OO0 April 5, 2015 904 000) shares

of Bs 1) gach 2 8 &
Balanca at ne and of the year - 04 (Marcn 31 2016 204,000 Apnl 1. 2015804 000) shares of Rs 3 3 9
10 2
Rigits, preference and resiriciton altached (¢ equity sharos
Equity shares
The Company has only oop class of equily shares kaving par vaie of RS 10 per share Eaih holder af tha aguily share is anlithd 1o ona vole per shara s the event of lguidadion of the
Crmmpary. the hoidars of auity shares will be anfitfed o recava the ramaining assats of e Company, atter distribution of all profarennal amounts
Shares held by Holding Company
Eguily shares
Relance Powar Limited - Holding Crompany B a 9
90 000 (March 31, 2006 903 000, Apel 1 2015 904 000) equiy shares ol Rs 10 aach fully paid
{000t o thig atiowe 97 i (\areh 31 2016 903 999 Aprit 1, 2016, ¢ 94 5] are hakd by
Rizliance Power Limitae and 1 sharea s fanfly held by Refiancs Powesr Limiled ar narmnens)
9 E] 9
Caotails of shares hold by shareholdars holding more than 5% of the aggregate shares in the Company
Equity shares
E v shares of Rs 10 gach lully pand up hale by Relianca Power Lineted - Fleldng Company
Percanagie of holfing 0 the class 100% 100%
Murmbier of shares 504,000 W4 D00




Dhursar Sotar Power Private Limited

Motes 1o

4.3

481

18.1(a)

18.2

4.54

the financial statements as of and {97 the year ended March 34, 2017 {eontinued)

Rupaes in lakhs

Panteulars

Dthar ofguity
Balance af the end of the year

Instrurmenl enbirgly SGuity [ ratre

Total

Roservos and surplus

2 Capital raserve {arizen purstian to schieme of amalgamalion and ATANgRmant with

Maharashira Engrgy Generation Infrastruciure Limiad) )
Securilies AWM aGEouUn|
Retangtd vatnings

Total

Instirument ontirely equity ln natere
Preforance Shares
Authorisoed

1.000.000 i(March 31, 2018: 1 000.000: Ageid 1. 2015 1 0000004 preferencn
shares of Ra 10 each

Issuad, subscribed and paid up capital
B D00 | March 31, 2016. 884.000: Apnl 1, 2015 884,000 preferenca shares of
Hs 10 sach iy pag-up

Reconcihaton af aumber of shares

Preforence shares [refer note no, 4.5.1 {a})

Halance at the hagnmng al the yean

B0 000 (March 31, 2016 894 000; Agrit 12016 8% 000} shares of R 10 @ach
Tully paick-up

Ralanca at he and of he year - 821,000 (March 31 2006 B9 000 Apel 01, 2015

F94.000) sharps of Bs 10 aach

A% at A al :
Marzh 31, 2047 Barch 3 2044 Apeil 11, 2015
@0 g B
B3 a% a9
1912 4z 4 812
17,701 17
9687 8802
3% M0 31415 30,033
104 190 0a
1010 100 00
B3 &5 8y
BY a9 89
9 )
9 g

Tarms! rights attached to proference shares
7.5% Compulsory Convertibla Rad bio Han-C

lallva Prafarence Shares {CCRPB}

The Company shall have a sl oplion on CCRPS which can be axarcisad by the Comsary in one or mord ranchas andin part orin full before the and of agreed 1anum (20

et

1 it b call ophon & e
rl CORPS imo aquily s
wpiinns. GORPS shall be compu

vears) of 1he s shares
shall higve e opticn 1o co
sharahotder hags ol gxarcsal (b
Inter cises Tully paid
e e Al
skarag shall conhitgs 1o ba ron cumuihve

4 CORPE shall be redeamed at an ssua pr
Fres at any Hme duning the benuee of such sharas. ALt
3 rily comyarid into eouity sha
aquily share of Rg, 10 sach st 3 premium of Rs 990 shara I durrg the
1o gividend on heir shares at Ihe same rale 25 the souly divicend and this dvidend will be over and ahove the coupon rae of 75%

Details of shares held by shareholders holding more than 5% of the aggregate shares in the Company

Proferance shares [rofer note no. 4.8.1{a}]

Prodernnce Shares of s, 10 each ully pad vup helid by Reliance Power Limited -
Haolding company

Parcantags o holding in the rss

Numbar ofshares

100%
B24.000

& value and premwm) The
e of Banane and 10 the exten
O corvarsion, in it o
nura o CORPS W Company deciaes aaquity dividend,

100%
B0 D)

Rupeos In lakhs

As al
March 31, 2047

As al
March 31 20165

Movemenl of Insiruments entirely equity m nature

Batanca al the begireing of tha year

894 000 (March 31 2016 B9 0000 Agril 1, 2015 854 000) sharas of Ra 10 aach
toilly prandeug

Balanca at the and of the pear - B804 000 (March 31, 2006 B4 000, Aprt 012015
BG4 U00) shares of Re 10 sach

Capltal reserve {arlsen pursuant ta schome of amalgamation and
arranigement with Maharashira Energy Generation Infrastructure Limiled) J
{refor note 4.B.4¢a) belfow)

Securtties premium accounl
Halanee at 1he bagnnng ol the year

Balange at tha end of tho yaal

Retalned sarnings

Balanie Jt the beginning of 1he year

Profit for the year

Add: Remegsurgimizets of post-employment benefil obboaton foet) (Refor nole 73

Balange af the amd of the year

9 9

] ]
4912 4,912
17,71 W
17.701 17,701
BAnz i
i) At
{5) 2
2.687 8,802

s of CORPS nowgvar

v fard
REE tmlgers shall
Thige prolerams

100%h

894000

b
e StwuiE B asnm oW Fis ._u-ffl’nl. y\rﬁfliujlrl I of sharess. The o

cunties premium acepunt

v is GEHE2e] Y Buot pands wih thi grovigion of the Companles Act, 2010



Dhursar Selar Power Privale Limilad

Noles to the financia siatements as of and for Iho yaar soded March 31, 2017 {continucd) Rupees in lakhs
Az at Az at Az al
Particulars March 31, 27 aareh 31, 2016 Apll 51 215

4.9 Non-curreni borrowlngs

Securad - al amartised cost - Tearm leans

Foragn cumancy loans frarm financial Institutiond other parties 42513 47 521 48 60
42,513 47,521 43,450

4,9.1 Maturna of socurity for Term Loans:

a) Term loans fram fmgncial Institutiony other paries of s 48 338 akbs (March 31 2018 B2 53 718 lakhs Apnl 1, 2015 Rs 54,707 {akhs) = secured ! 10 be securad by st
charge on all the (mmovable and movaliie assets and intangible asset of the Company on pan passd hass and pledge of 99 32% of the total ssuad share capial of ihe
Company heit by the Holding Sompany

) Tha Hiiding Comparty has given finarcial commitinents: guataniess ta the lender of the Company. frater nate B¢

¢} Cutrarit matuiites of leng 1em Horrgwirgs have besn classtied 33 uthes current liabilitles (rafar nate 4 12(01)

4,9.2 Yerms of Repaymen! and Interest

31 Tna toregn cuirency loan fram financial institulon oRar DErES & MEEEyanis ovel a penod b siieen and nall yaars in Nal-yaarny nstalimania sommeanting from
Septemner 25 2012 ana Intetest 1s payadle besed on Commercial interest Refarenca Rata whicn is 2.97% per annum. Tha oulslanding Salanca a5 on year and 5 Rs
20354 lakhs (March 31 2016 Rs. 32 804 lakhs Apnl 1 2015 Rs 33,183 lakhs)

oi The loraign surtency lean from inancial Rsitubon ailset patiss is epayable aver 3 peasod of sidadn and nall yaars 1 hulf-yeatly mstalimeants commengmg from
Septeriber 25 2012 and pitarsat al the rate of § months LSO LISOR plus 2.5% gar annum The suistanding balance as an year and s B 15,284 iakhs (Margh 31 2018
Rs 21111 tgkhs Agiil 01 2016 Rs. 21 513 lakhs)

4.9.3 The amoitsad cost disclosed abova & nst off incidemal cost of borawngs 3ggregatng of Rs  1.853 lakng (Mareh 31.2016Rs 1331 takhs. Aonl 01 2015 Rs 2 22
ks



Diwrsar Solar Fower Private Limited
Motes (o the linancial statements as ol and for tha year ended March 31, 2017 {continued)

Rupees in lakhs

Particulars
4.10 Non-current provisions
Provisan for gratuty irefar note 71
Prowsion for leave ancashment {refer note ¥

Az al
March 31, 2017

As at
March 312016

Asat
Aprd 01,2015

4.11 Q1hor non-guereal Babilities

Advance for contraciad certified emission reduction

4,12{a) Trade payables
Tetal Qutstanding dues of micro en
(refar nate 17]
Total Quistanding dues of creditors oiher than midre enter
sterprises (1efer note 17)

fses ard smal emarpnsss

5 and smal

4.12{b) Ciher current financial labilities
Current matunbes of long-tarm batrawangs {rafer note 4 9)
Interast ac but not due on borrowings
Craditors for capial xpendilure
Retenlion money payable
Creditors for sUplies and services
Darvative Liabilities [Mark 1o Market } on denvative Instrumearita (Met)
Uihars

4,13 Other current lizbilities
Advance for contracled cerified emission reduction
Othar payables’
“(including provident fund tax deducted al source and othar mscelaneous
payabies)

4,14 Current provisions
Provision ot gratuily frefer note 7)
Prowsion tor leave gncashmen {refer nols 71

4.15 Current lax provision
Provison tar ingame 1ax (net of advance tax Rs 1,497 lakbs (March 31, 2018 R
Nl Apnl 01 2018 Rs. 189 |akhs))

i ! 2
1 7 @
2 8 2
a0 i 435
40 201 436
o5 aat =
48 91 98
4137 4 263 4.022
29 35 3
. . Ad
3 2 132
1] 683 X
238 35 i
53 a7 4
4,581 4,455 4,586
166 166 100
i2 i 10
178 174 110
-] a @
@ i @
5 @ a_
5] - 187
GG - 467




Dhursar Solar Power Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements as of and for the year ended March 31, 2017 {continued)

Particulars

4.16 Revenue from operations

4.18

4,19

Sale of energy {relec nate 9%
Other Operating income

Interest from customer an delayed payments (refer note 8)
Carbon credil emission

Other incoma

Interest income:
Bank deposils

Dividend income:
Cn current investment in mulual funds

Net gain on sale { accrual of income on investments:
Current investment in mutual funds

Net gain on salllementand fair value change arrising on derivative instruments mandatonly
measursd at FVPL

Prowvision written back
Other non-aperating income
Employee benefits expensea
Salaries. bonus and other allowances

Coninbution to provident fund and other funds
Gratuity and lzave ancashment

Finance costs

Interest and finrance charges on Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost:
On Foreign curency loans

Met loss on setllementand fair value change arrising on derivative instruments mandatornly
measured at FVPL

Clher finance chargas

Rupees in lakhs

Yaar ended
March 31, 2047

Year ended
tlarch 41 2018

11,820 WTTT
163
12,150 11.945
408 203
- 2
- 223
- 380
- 1

8
504 819
60 a4
3 3
2 9
85 96
1,977 2007
725 529
3 2
2,705 2,538




Dhursar Solar Pawer Private Limited

Notas to the financial statlements as of and far the year ended March 31, 2017 (continued)
Rupees in lakhs

Year ended Year ended
Particulars March 31. 2017 fargh 31, 2016
4.20 Other axpenses

Slores and spares consumed 97 -
Rent expenses 4 4
Transmission charges 624 562
Operalion and mamtenance sarvice charges 233 226
Ciher operaling expendilures 208 928
Repars and maintenance

- Plant and equipmeant . 1 . 14

- Building : 1 -
Legal and professional charges {including shared service charges) 140 146
Rales and laxes i3 )
Insurance " 43 . 70

Miscellanasous expenses 14 13

1.408 1,971




Dhursar Solar Power Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements as of and for the year ended March 31, 2017 {continued)

5)

6}

Contingent liabilities and commitments

(a) Demand of Rs. 1,812 lakhs (March 31, 2016 Rs. 1,111 lakhs, April 01,2015 Rs. Nil} has been raised towards
the provisional Unscheduled Inlerchanges (Ul) charges from the financial year 2012-13 (o financial year
2016-17 by Jodhpur Vidyut Vitran Nigam Lid. {(JdVVNL}. which has been dispuled by the Company.

Future cash flows n respect of the above matlers can only be delermined based on the fulure cutcome al
various uncertain faclors.

{b) Estimated amount of conlrac!s remaining unexecuted on capital account (nel of advances paid) and not
provided lor Rs. Nil {March 31, 2016 Rs. Nil: April 01, 2015 Rs. 1,400 lakhs).

Details of remuneration to auditors:
Rupees in lakhs

Year ended | Year ended

March 31,2017 | March 31, 2016 |

{al As audilors

For statutory audit 21 20
For others 1 @
(h) Out-of-pocke! expenses _ @ (@

7)

a)

b)

&1 Amount is below the rounding off norm adopted by the Company.

Empioyee benefit obligations
The Company has classified various employee benefits as under:

Leave obligations
The leave obligalions cover the Company hability for sick and privileged leave.

Rupees in lakhs

| Provision for leave encashment March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016 March 31, 2015
Current” @ @ @
Non-current 1 7 @

@ Amount is below the rounding off norm adopted by the Company

* The Company does not have an unconditional right 1o defer the selttemenls

Defined contribution plans
(i) Provident fund
(i1} Superannuation fund
(iii} State defined contribution plans
- Employees’ Pension Scheme 1985

The provident fund and the stale defined contrnibution plan are operated by lhe regional providenl fund commissioner
and the superannuation fund is administered by the trust. Under the schemes, the Company is required to conlribule a
specified percentage of payroll cost to lhe retirement benefil schemes lo fund the benefits.

The Company has recegnised the foltowing amounts in the Statemenl of Profil and Loss for the year:

Rupees in lakhs

Year ended Year ended

March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016

{i} Contribution to providenl fund 2 2
{ii) Contribution to employees’ superannualion fund 1 1
{iit) Contribution 1o employees' pension scheme 1995 @ @
{iv} Contribution lo employees’ deposit linked insurance scheme @ @

@ Amounl is below the rounding off norm adopted by lhe Company



Dhursar Solar Power Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements as of and for the year ended March 31, 2017 {continued)

c)

Post employment obligation

Gratuity

The Company has a defined benefit plan in India, governed by the payment of gratuity act, 1972. The plan entitle an
employees, who has rendered at least five years of conlinuous service, (o graluity al lhe rale of fifteen days basic
salary for every completed years of services or parl lhereof in excess of six months, based on the rate of basis salary

last drawn by the employee concerned

(i) Significant estimates: actuarial assumptions

Valations in respecl of gratuity have been carried oul by an independenl actuary. as at the Balance Shest date,

based on the following assumplions:

Particulars March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016 April 01, 2015
Discount rate (per annumb 7.05% | 7.80% 7.85%
Rate of increase in compensation levels 7.50% 7.50% 7.50%
Expected average remaining working lives of 10.22 10.09 9.69

employees in number of years

The estimale of rate of escalation in salary considered in actuarial valuation. lakes into account inflation, seniority. promotion

and other relevant factors including supply and demand in the employment market

(i} Balance sheet amount (Gratuity Plan)

Rupees in lakhs

Particulars

Present value of
obligation

Fair value of plan
assels

Net amount

April 01, 2015

Current service cost

interest cost

Total amount recognised in profit and loss

G ) N

Y ) N PR

Remeasurements

Return on pian assets. excluding amount included in
inleresl expense/{income)

{Gain} { loss from change in demographic assumptions

{Gain } / loss from change in financial assumptions

@

Experience (gains) / losses

{2)

Total amount recognised in other comprehensive
income

(2)

Employer contributions

Benefil payments

March 31, 2016

Rupees in lakhs

Present value of

Fair value of plan

Particulars obligation assets Net amount
April 01, 2016 1 - 1
Currenl service cost @ - @
Interest cost @ _ - @
Total amount recognised in profit and loss 1 - 1
Remeasurements
Return on plan assets, excluding amount included in
interesl expensée/(income) - - -
{Gain) / loss from change in demographic assumplions - - -
(Gain) / loss from change in financial assumptions @ - @
Experience (gains) / losses 5 - A
Total amount recognised in other comprehensive
income 5 - 5
Employer contributions . - -
Benefit paymenpts—— - - -
7 - 7

Margh 3T, 2017\ i1l 0y,
Ay



Dhursar Solar Power Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements as of and for the year ended March 31, 2017 {continued)

The nel liabilily disclosed above relates to funded and unfunded plans are as lollows:
Rupees in lakhs
Particulars March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016 April 01, 2015

Present value of funded obligations i n 3
Fair value of plan assets v - -
Deficit of gratuity plan - -
Unlunded plans 7 1
Deficit of gratuity plan 7 1 2

(iil) Sensitivity analysis:
The sensilivity of the defined benefit obligalion to changes in the weighted principal assumptions is:

Change in assumptions | Increase in assumptions decrease n assumptions
Particulars March March March March March March
31, 2017 31, 2016 31, 2017 31, 2016 31, 2017 31, 2016
Discount rate 0.50% 0.50% TFITY% -8.03% 8.65%, B.95%
Rate of increase in
compensation levels 0.50% 0 50% 8.57% 8.94% -7.78% -8.09%

The above sensilivity analysas are based on a change in an assumption while holding all other assumplions conslant. In
practice, this is unlikely to occur, and changes in some of the assumptions may be correlated, When calculating the
sensitivily of the defined benefil obligation to significant actuarial assumptions the same methed (present value of the
defined benefit obligation calculated with the projected unit credil method at the end of the reporting period) has been
applied as when calculating the defined benefit liability recegnised m the balance sheel. The methods and lypes of
assumptions used in preparing the sensitivity analysis did not change compared 10 the prior period.

For unfunded plan, the Company has no compulsion to pre fund the liability of the plan. The Company’s policy is not to
externaily fund these liabilities but instead recognizes the provision and pay the graluily ta its employees directly from its
own resources as and when the employee leaves the Company.

{iviDefinad benefit iiability and employer contributions:

The company has agraed (hat it will aim to eliminale the deficit in defined benefit plan in subsequent years. Funding
levels are monitored on an annual basis and the current agreed contribution rale is 8.33% of lhe basic salaries.

The weighled average duration of the defined benefil obligalion is 16 39 years (2016 — 16.94 years, 2015- 10.80
years),

(v} The Company has secended certain employees to lhe subsidiaries As per the lerms of the secondment, fiability
lowards Satanes, Provident fund and leave encashment will be provided and paid by \he respeclive subsidiaries
and graluity will be paid / provided by the Company. Accordingly, provision for gratuily as disclosed includes cosl
of employees seconded as well.




Dhursar Sofar Power Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements as of and for the year ended March 31, 2017

8) Assets' pledged as security

Rupees in lakhs

Particulars March 31, 2017 | March 31, 2016 April 01, 2015
Non-current

Financial assets

First charge

Investmen!s 4 511 4.511 4.511
Other financial assets 484 300 810
Non-financial assets

First charge

Property. plant and equipment 50.918 58.910 63.071
Other non-current assets - 36 G688
Total Non-current assets pledged as security 55,913 83,757 69,080
Current

Financial assets

First charge

Invesiments - - 4747
Trade recevables 6,965 2116 1,995
Cash and bank balances 4,190 5.787 882
Loans 12,826 12,126 8,506
Other financial assets 66 66 56
Non-financial assets |
Inventories

Current tax assels - 184 -
Other current assets 3 18 G
Total non-current assets pledged as security 24,050 20,297 16,192
Total assets pledged as security 79,963 84,054 85,272




Dhursar Solar Power Private Limited
Notes to the financlal statements as of and for the year ended March 31, 2017 {continued)

9) Related party transactions:

As per Indian Accounting Standard 24 (Ind AS-24) 'Related Parly Transactions' as prescribed by Companies
(Indian Accounling Slandards) Rules, 2015, the Companies related parlies and transactions are disclosed below.

A. Parties where control exists:

Holding Company
Reliance Power Limited {RPowen)

Fellow subsidlaries:

Rajasthan Sun Technique Energy Private Limited (RSTL)
Tato Hydro Power Private Limited {THPPL}

Siyom Hydro Power Private Limited (SHPPL)

Rosa Power Supply Company Limited (RPSL)

Sasan Power Limited (SPL)

Vidrarbha Industries Power Limited (VIPL)

Samalkot Power Limited (SMPL)

8. Investing parties/promoters having significant influence on the Company directly or indirectly:

Individual
Shn Anil D Ambani

Companies
Reliance Infrastructure Limited (R Infra)



Dhursar Sclar Power Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements as of and for the year ended March 31, 2017 [continued)

C

Details of transactions during the year and closing balance at the end of the year:

Rupees in lakhs

March 31, 2017

March 31, 2016

(i) | Transactions during the year:

Sales

- R Infra (Sale of Energy) 11.820 11.777
Interest income on delayed payment

- R Infra 169

Reimbursement of expenses and advances incurred by

- R power 9 4
- SPL @ 1
- VIPL - 2
- SMPL - @
- RPSL @

Reimbursement of expenses and advances paid for |
- VIPL - 1
Refund of Capital Advance

- R Infra 36 600
Legal and Professional charges paid towards shared services

- R power 58 57
Inter corporate deposit Given to

- R power 1,000 5,153
Refund of inter corporate deposit given by

- R power 300 1,503

Rupees in lakhg

March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016 April 01, 2015

{iiy | Closing Balance :

Equity share capital (excluding premium)

- R Power 90 90 90

Preference share capital (excluding premium) |

- R Power 89 89 89

Capital Advance

- R Infra - 36 688

Trade receivables

- R Infra 6,965 2,116 1.995

Non-current Investment (refer note 4.2(a)

THPPL 4,233 4,233 4233

SHPPL 278 278 278

Inter corporate deposit receivable

i e x
@C%Tmmt!@ﬂfeiy}y? rounding off norm ade_t_sLd.H;ﬁQormjﬂny
S :



Dhursar Solar Power Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements as of and for the year ended March 31, 2017 {continued)

{ii)y The Holding Company has entered into agreements with the lenders of the Company wherein it has cormmitied to
extend financial support in the form of equity or debt as per the agreed means of finance, in respect of the project
being undertaken, including hedging support, investment supporl and project cosl overrun support.,

(v} The above disclosures do not include transaclions with public ulility service providers, viz, eleclricily,
telecommunications in the normal course of business.

The Company has entered into a memorandum of underslanding for sharing of certain assets between the
Company and RSTEPL.

10} Earnings per share:

. Year ended Year ended
Particulars March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016
Profit available to equity shareholders
Net profil after tax (A) (Rupees in lakhs) 890 480
Waeighted average number of equity shares (B) 904.000 904,000
Basic earnings per share {A/B) (Rupees) 08.46 53.12
Weighted average number of potential eqguily shares on account of conversion 894.000 894,000
of preference shares (C)

Weighted average number of shares for Diluted EPS{D=B+C) 1,798.000 1.798.000
Diluted earnings per share (A/D) (Rupees) 49.51 26.71
Nominal value of an equity share {Rupees) 10.00 10.00
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Dhursar Solar Power Private Limited

Notes to the financlai statements as of and for the year ended March 31, 2017 {continued)

11} Income taxes

The major components of incomellax expense for the years ended March 31, 2017 and March 31. 2016 are as under:

(a) Income tax recoegnised in statement of profit and loss

Rupees in lakhs

Particulars March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016
Income tax expense

Current year lax 700 207
Total 700 207

{b) The recenciliation of tax expense and the accounting profit multiplied by tax rate :

Rupees in lakhs

Pariiculars March 31, 2017 March 31, 2018
Profit before tax (A) 1,680 687
Tax at the Indian tax rate of 34.608% 550 238
Tax effect of amaunts which are not deductible{taxable} in calculating
taxable income:;
Tax impact on disallowed expenses (net) 624 344
MAT credil entitlement not recognised 700 207
Tax effect of Sec BOIA of Income Tax Act A7 (582)
Income tax expense 700 207

{c) Tax liabilities/ (Assets):

Rupees in lakhs

Particulars

March 31, 2017

March 31, 2016

Provision for income tax (advance lax) — Opening balances {184) 467
Taxes paid (net of refund) (450) {860)
Current lax payable for the year 700 207
Provision for income tax (advance lax) — Closing balances 66 (1W

MNote:

The Company is availing tax holiday under Section 80- 1A of Income Tax Act, 1961, Deferred lax asset for liming difference
oh account of depreciation, originating as on the Balance Sheel dale is reversing during the tax holiday period. Hence. there
is no deferred lax assel/ liability to be recognised in lhe financial slalement on account of liming difference.



Dhursar Solar Power Private Limited

Notes to the financlal statements as of and for the year ended March 31, 2017 (continued)

12} Fair valye measurements

{a) Financial instruments by category

Rupees in lakhs

March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016 April 1, 2015
Amortised Amortised Amortised
FVPL cost FVRL cost FVPL cost
Financial assets
Investments
Mutual funds ' — = - 4,746 -
Securily Deposil E 56 - 56 - 56
Derivalive assels 483 - 299 - 808
Trade recsivables - 6,965 - 2,116 - 1,995
Cash and cash equivalents - 3.440 - 5,014 - 882
Bank deposils with more than 12 b 750 5 773 3 g
months maturity
Inter corporale deposits . 12.826 = 12,126 - 8.508
Other financial assets s @ - - - 20,227
Advance recoverable in cash orin - 11 - 11 - 1
kind
Total financial assets 483 24,048 299 20,096 5,554 11,437
Financial liabilities
Borrowings - 46.708 - 51,819 - 52,514
Trade payables - 98 - 91 - 98
Creditors for capital expendilure : - - . 44
Retention money payable - 3 - 4 - 132
Creditors for supplies and services . 91 - 63 - 337
Other financial liabilities - 53 - 67 . 4
Derivatives Liabilities 238 . 35 : 16 -
Total financial liabilities & 103 i SEV 18 831

@ Amount is balow the rounding off norm adopted by the Company.

{b)

Fair value hierarchy

This section explains the judgements and estimates made in determining the fair values of the financial instruments that are
(a) recognised and measured at fair value and (b} measured at amortised cosl and for which fair values are disclosed in the
financial statements. To provide an indication aboul the reliability of the inpuls used in determining fair value, the company
has classified its financial instruments into the three levels prescribed under the accounting slandard. An explanation of
each level follows undarneath the lable.

Rupees in lakhs
Financial assets and liabilities measured at fair Notes Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
value - recurring fair value measurements as at
March 31, 2017
Financial assets
Derivatives 4.2(b) - 483 - 483
Total financial assets - 483 - 483
Financial liabilities
Derivalives 4.12(b) - 238 - 238
Total financial ltabilities - 238 - 238




Dhursar Solar Power Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements as of and for the year ended March 31, 2017 (continued)

Rupees in lakhs

Assets and liabilities which are measured at
amonrtised cost for which fair values are
disclose as at March 31, 2017

Notes

Level 1

Level 2

Level 3

Total

Financial assets

Security deposits

4.2(b)

Total financial assets

Financial Liabilities

Borrowings

46 101

46,101

Total financial liabilities

46101

46,101

Rupees in lakhs

Financial assets and liabilities measured at fair
value - recurring fair value measurements as at
March 31, 2016

Notes

Level 1

Level 2

Level 3

Total

Financial assets

Derivatives

4 2(b}

289

299

Total financlal assets

299

299

Financial liabilities

Derivalives

4.12(b)

Total financial liabilities

35

Rupees in lakhs

Assets and liahilities which are measured at
amortised cost for which fair values are
disclose as at March 31, 2016

Notes

Level 1

Level 2

Level 3

Total

Financial assets

Security deposit

4.2(b)

Total financial assets

Financial Liabilities

Borrowings

52.230

52.230

Total financial liabilities

52,230

52,230

Rupees in lakhs

Financial assets and liabilitias measured at fair
value - recurring fair value measurements as at
April 81, 2015

Notes

Level 1

Level 2

Level 3

Total

Financial assets

Derivatives

4.2(b)

809

809

Mutual Fund

4,747

4,747

Total financial assets

5,556

5,556

Financial fiabilities

Derivatives

4.12(b)

18

16

Total financial liabilities

16

16 |

Rupees in lakhs

Assets and liabitities which are measured at
amortised cost for which fair values are
disclose as at April 01, 2015

Notes

Level 1

Level 2

Level 3

Total

Financial assets

Securily deposil

@

Total financial assets

@@

@

Financial Liahilities

TV

52.588

52.588

raysfifanciat HGAONGSS

g ~
32588

|

52,588

T At




Dhursar Solar Power Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements as of and for the year ended March 31, 2017 {continued}

(c) Valuation processes
The Company obtains assistance of independent and competent third parly valuation expers to perform the valuations of
financial assets and liabilities required for linancial reperting purposes, including level 3 fair values. Discussions of valuation

processes and resulls are held between the Company and the vaiuer on pericdically basis.

Discount rates ars determined using a capital asset pricing model to calculate a pre-lax rate that reflects current market
assessments of the lime value of money and the risk specific lo the assel.

{d} Valuation technigue used to determine fair values
Specific valuation techniques used o value financial instruments include:
. The mutual funds are valued using the closing Nel Assets Value {NAV). NAV represents the price al which the issusr

will issue these units and will redeem such unils of mutual fund 10 and from lhe investor.

. The fair value of interest rate swaps is calculated as the present value of the estimated future cash flows based on
observable curves.

. The fair value of forward foreign exchange contracts is determined using Bloomberg forward contract pricing model,
which determines fair value on a discounted cash flow basis.

. The fair value of foraign currency option contracts is determined using the Black Scheles valualion maodel.
- The fair value of remaining financial iInstruments is determined using discounted cash flow analysis,

{2) Fair value of financlal assets and liabilities measured at amortised cost

Rupees in lakhs
March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016 April 01, 2015
Carrying Fair value Carrying Fair value Carrying Fair Value
amount amount amount
Financial Assets
Security deposits 1 1 1 1 1
Total financial assets 1 1 1] 1 1 1
Financial Liabilities
Borrowings” 46.708 46,101 51,819 52,230 52.514 52.588
Total financial
tiahilities 46,708 46,101 51,819 52,230 52,514 52,588

*Carrying amount of borrowing includes long lerm borrowing, currenl malturily of long lerm borrowing and interest accrued
but not due on borrowing,

The carrying amount of current financial assets and liabilities {(other than current malurity of long term borrowing and inlerest
accrued bul not due on borrowing which have been considered as parl of borrowing) are consrdered 10 be the same as their
fair values, due to their shor term nalure.

The fair vaiue of the long-term Borrowings with floating-rate of interesl is not impacted due 10 interesl rate changes, and waill
not be significantly different fram their carrying amounts as there is no significant change in the under-lying credit risk of the
Company borrowing {since Lhe date of inceplion of the loans).

For financial assels and liabilities that are measured at lair value, the carrying amaunt is equal to Lhe fair values.

Note
Level 1 : Level 1 hierarchy includes linancial inslrumenls measured using quoled prices.

Leve! 2: The fair value of financial instroments lhat are not raded in an active market {for example over-the-counler
derivalives} is determined using valuation technigues which maximise the use of observable market data and refy as little as
possible on enlily-specific estimates. If all significant inputs required to fair value an instrument are observable, the
instrument is included in level 2.

Leval 3: If one or more of the significant inputs 1s nol based on observable market data, lhe instrument is included in level 3.
This is the case for unlisted equily secunlies which are included in fevel 3.

There werw@,mfmhowren any levels during the ypar
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Dhursar Sola

r Power Private Limited

Notes to the financial statements as of and for ihe year ended March 31, 2017 {continued)

13} Financial

risk management

The Company’s business activilies expose il to a variely of financial risks, namely liquidily nsk, market risks and credt

resulting
at amorti

risk.
[ Risk Exposure arising from Measurement Management
Credit Risk Cash and cash equivalents, trade Aging analysis only high rated
receivables, financial assets banks/institutions are accepled
measured at amortised cost.
Liquidity Risk Borrowings and other liabilities Rolling cash flow forecasls | Availability of committed credit
lines and borrowing facilities
Market risk - Recognised financial assets and Sensitivity analysis Partly hedge by foreign
foreign exchange | liabilities nol denominated in Indian exchange forward, ¢ross
rupee (Rs.) currency and call spread
conlrac!
Market risk - Long-term borrowings al variable Sensitivity analysis Parly hedge by Interest rate
interest rate rales swap
{a) Credit risk
The company i1s exposed to credit risk. which is the risk that counterparty will default on its conlractual obligation

in a financial ioss to the company. Cradit nisk arises fraom cash and cash equivalents, financial assets carried
sed cost and deposits with banks and financial institutions. as well as credit exposures to trade customers

towards sale of electncity as per the term of PPA and CERC.

Credit risk management

(b} Liqui

(i

Credil risk is the rigk that counterparty will nol meel s obligations under a financial inslrument or custemer
contract, leading lo a financial loss

The Company credil risk arises from accounts receivable balances on sale of eleclricily is based on the PPA
entered with power procurers and inter-corporate deposits / loans given to group entiies. The credit risk is low
as lhe sale of electricity is based on the terms of the PPA which has been approved by the regulator. The
Inter-corporaie deposils { loan have been given only to enlilies within the group. There is no change in the
risk slalus of such corporate

For banks and financial institutions, only highly rated banks/inslitulions are accepled. Generally all paiicies
surrounding credil risk have been managed al company level. The Company's policy lo manage this risk is to
invesl in debl securities that have a good credit rating.

dity risk

Prudent liquidily risk management implies maintaining sufficient cash and marketable securilies and lhe
availabilty of funding through an adequate amount of commilted credit Iacilities to meel obligations when due
and to close out market positions. Que to the dynamic nature ol the underlying businesses, company treasury
maintains flexibility in funding by maintaining availabilily under commilled credit lines.

nManagemenl monitors rolling farecasts of the Company's liquidity positicn and cash and cash equivalents on
the basis of expected cash flows In addition, the Company’s liquidily management policy involves projecling
cash flows in major currencies and considering the level of liquid assels necessary 10 meet these, monitoring
balance sheet liquidity ratios agalnst internal and externat regulatory reguirements and maintaining debi
financing plans

o

-




Dhursar Sotar Power Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements as of and for the year ended March 31, 2017 {continued)

Maturities of financial liabilities

{ii)

The amounts disclosed in lhe below are lhe contractual unthscounled cash (lows. Balances due within 12
months equal lheir carrying balances as lhe impacl of discounting is nol significant.

Rupees in lakhs

Between
March 31, 2017 Lf"’yse;hrzn 1y o ;i;'::” Total
years
Non-derivatives Financial liabilities
Borrowings® 5772 21,677 30.811 58.260
Trade payables 98 - - 93
Retention money payable 3 - - 3 |
Craditors for supplies and services N - N
Other financial liabilities 53 - - 53
Total Non-derivatives Financial liabilities 6,017 21,677 30,811 58,505
Darivatives Financial liahilities
Forward exchange conlracts use for hedging
Inflow {2.536) - - {2.536)
Oulflow 2.783 - 2.783
Total Derivatives Financial liabilities 247 - - 247
Rupees in lakhs
Between
March 31, 2016 L‘:syig::" by M5° ;Z;?;‘" Total
years
Non-derivatives Financial liabilities
Borrowings' 5,945 22.404 36.576 654,925
Trade payables 91 - - 1
Retenlion money payable 2 . - 2
Creditors for supplies and services 63 - - 63
Other financial liabilities 67 - - 67
Total Non-derivatives Financial liabilities 6,168 22,404 36,576 65,148
Derivatives Financial liahilities
Forward exchange conlracts use for hedging
Inflow (3.951) - - (3.951)
Qutflow 3.988 - - 3.688
Total Derivatives Financlal liabilities 37 - - 37
Rupees in lakhs
Between
April 01, 2015 L;*Syse:::" b i M°;‘Z;’:§" 3 Total
years
Non-derivatives Financial liabilities
Borrowings® 5,628 21,303 39,289 66,220
Trade payables 98 - - 98
Creditors for capital expenditure 44 = - 44
Retenlion money payable 132 - - 132
Creditors for supplies and services 337 . - 337
Other financial liabilities 4 - - 4
Total Non-derivatives Financial liabilities 6,243 21,303 39,289 66,835
Derivatives Financial liahilities
Forward exchange contracts use for hedging
| Inflow (810) - - (810)
{ Quition L/, . 826 - - 826
| Total Derivajives Financial liabilities N SN - | e 4 16
Btpeiudnsaniiatusl inlerest pa _,Hm_-I_i:[?;"'.h’;l:_1'.-'-_‘-|.'..‘ on 1!1\,\-, ‘es| rate pravailing 1}:’}1‘;z:,‘5lif_xm‘&:}\h




Dhursar Solar Power Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements as of and for the year ended March 31, 2017 (continued)

{c) Market risk

Market risk is the risk thal (he fair values of fuiure cash flows of a financial instrument will flucluate because of
volatility of prices in the iinancial markets. Markel risk can be furiher segregated as: a) Foreign currency risk and b)
nterest rate risk.

{iy Foreign cutrency risk

Foraign currency risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate
because of changes in foreign exchange rates. The company has long term menetary liabilities which are in
currency other than ils functional currency. Foreign currency risk. as defined in ind AS 107, arises as the value of
recognised monetary assets and monetary liabilities denominated in other currencies fluctuate due to changes in
foreign exchange rates.

+ Forelgn currency risk exposure:
The companys exposure Lo foreign currency risk (all in USD §) at the end of the reporling period expressed in INR,

172 3s follows.
Rupees in lakhs

March 31, 2017 | March 31, 2016 April 01, 2015

Financial liabilities

Borrowings 48.366 53.749 54,738
Gross foreign currency exposure 48,366 53,749 54,738
Covered by Derivative
Forward contracts 5,252 9,154 782
Call spread 16,417 16.795 12,180
Cross Currency Swap - - 6.316
Covered by derivatives 21,669 25,949 19,278
Net exposure to foreign currency risk (liabilities) 26,697 27,800 35,460

+ Sensitivity of foreign currency exposure
L
The sensitivity of profit or loss 10 changes in the exchange rates arises mainly from foreign currency denominated
financial instrumenis.
Rupees in lakhs

Impact on profit before tax /
Property, plant and equipment

March 31, 2017 | March 31, 2016

USD sensitivity

FX rate — increase by 6% on closing rate on reporting date” (2,398) (2.740)

FX rale— decrease by 6% on closing rate on reporting date * 2,258 2.747

* Holding all other variables conslan!

{ii} Interest rate risk

The company’s main inierest rale risk arises from long-term borrowings with variable ratés, which expose the
company to cash flow inlerest rate risk. During March 31, 2016 and March 31, 2015 the company's borrowings
at variable rate were manly denominaled in USD.

The company's fixed rale borrowings are carried at amortised cosl. They are lherefore not subject to interest
rate risk as defined in Ind AS 107, since neilher ihe carrying ameunt nor the future cash flows will fluctuate
/Eapﬂhs'\q of & change.in markel interest rales



Dhursar Solar Power Private Limited

Notes to the financial statements as of and for the year ended March 31, 2017 {continuad)

* Interest rate risk exposure

The exposure of the company's borrowing to interest rate changes at the end of the reporting period are as follows:

Rupees in lakhs

March 31, 2017

March 31, 2016

April 01,2015

Variable rate borrowings

18.720

20.800

21,152

« Sensitivity of Interest

Prolit or loss is sensitive lo higher! {lower) interest expense from borrowings as a result of changes in inlerest

rates.

Rupees in lakhs

Impact on profit before tax

March 31, 2017

March 31, 2016

Interest sensitivity

Interesi cost — increase by 5% on existing Interest cost®*

{40}

(34)

Interest cost — decrease by 5% on existing Inlerest cost”

40

34

* Helding all other variables constant

14) Capital Management

{a) Risk Management

The company’s objeclives when managing capital are to safeguard the company's ability to continue as a going
concern in order to provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain an oplimal
capital structure to reduce the cost of capital. In order to mainlain or adjust the capital struclure, the company may
adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders, return capital to shareholders, issue new shares or sell assets to

reduce debt.

The Company menitors capital on basis of lotal aquily and debl on a periodic basis. Equity comprises all components of
equity includes the fair value impacl. Debt includes long term borrowing and currenl maturity. The following table

summarizes the capilal of lhe Company:

Rupees in lakhs

March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016 March 31, 2015
Equily (excluding other reserves) 27,567 26.682 26,200
Dabt 46,680 51.784 52482
Total 74,247 78,466 78,682

(b) The Company is generally regular in payment of its debt service obligalion and the Company has not received any
communication from lenders for non-compliance of any debi covenant.

15) Segment reporting

Presently, the Company is ehgaged in only one segment viz 'Generation of Powet’ and as such there is no separale
reporlable segment as per Ind AS 108 'Operaling Segments'. Presently, the Company’s operalicns are predominanlly

confined in India.

Information about major customers

Revenue for the year ended March 31, 2017 and March 31, 2016 were from customers localed in India. Customers
include private dislribution entities. Revenue to specific customers exceeding 10% of total revenue for the years ended

March 31, 2017 and March 31, 2016 were as follows:

For the year ended

March 31, 2017

March 31, 2016

Customer Name Revenue in Lakhs

Percent

Revenue in Lakhs

Parcent

Rinfra 11.820

100%

11,777

100%

16) Exchange Difference on Long Term Monetary items

In accordance wilh Para D13AA of Ind AS 101 "First time adoption of Indian Accounting Standards” and the option
available in the Companies (Accounting Standards) {Second Amendment) Rules, 2011, vide notification dated
December 29, 2011 issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs. The Company has adjusted the value of Plant and
eduipment by Gain of Rs. 1,134 lakhs {31, March 2016 Rs. 3,237 lakhs (loss), for 1, April 2015 Rs. 2,150 lakhs {loss))

towards ifferance arising on long term foreign currency monetary liabilittes towards
depsoeiableassifat, e




Dhursar Solar Power Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements as of and for the year ended March 31, 2017 {continued)

17) Disclosure under Micro, Smalil and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006

18)

19)

20)

Disclostre of ameunts payable {0 vendors as defined under the "Micro, Small and Medium Enterprise Development Act.
2006" is based on the information available with the Company regarding the slalus ol registration of such vendors under
the said Act. There are no overdue principal amounts / interesl payable amounts for delayed payments to such vendors
at the Batance Sheet date. There are no delays in payment made to such suppliers during the year or for any earlier
years and accordingly there is no interest paid or outstanding interest in this regard in respect of payments made during
the year or brought forward from previous years.

The information for Self- generated Certified Emission Reductions (CERs) relating to certified emission rights are as
follows' -

Sr. Particulars For the year ended For the year endedt
Na. Jist March 2017 31st March 2016
a} MNo. of CERs held as invenlory and the - -

basis of valuation
hj " Mo. of CERs under ceriification 84,701 64,144
c) Depreciation and operating and - -

maintenance cosls of Emission Reduction
equipment expensed during the year

Offsetting of financial assets and financial liabilities

The following table presents the derivative financial insiruments thal are offsel as al March 31, 2017, March 31, 2016
and April 01, 2015 where as per the terms of the agreement the net posilion owing / receivable o a single counlerparly
in the same currency has been offsellted and presented at nel amount in the balance sheel.

= Rupees in lakhs
Particulars Gross amounts Gross amount sett- Net balance presented
off in balance sheet in balance sheet

As at March 31, 2017
Financial Liabilities

Derivalive Liabilities {522) 284 (238)
Total Financial Liabilities {522} 284 (238)
Financial Assets

Derivalive Assets 767 (284) 483
Total Financial Assets 767 {284) 483

As at March 31, 2016
Financial Liabilities

Derivative Liabililies _(84) 49 {35)
Total Financial Liabilities (84) 49 (35}
Financial Assets

Derivative Assets - 348 (49) 299
Total Financial Assets 348 (49) 299

As at April 01, 2015
Financial Liabilities

Derivative Liabilities (88) 72 (16)
Total Financial Liabilities (88) 72 {16)
Financial Assets |
Derivative Assels 881 (72) 809
Total Financial Assets 881 (72) 809 |

During the year, the Company had no specilied bank noles or no other denomination nole as defined in the MCA
nolification G.3.R. 308(E) dated March 31, 2017 and there were no transaction during lhe period from November §,
2016 to December, 30 2016.
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